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‘lNDEAPEND_ENTiAUDlT0RST'REPORT 

I To the4Me‘mbe’rs_of Provincial Métié HoIdco_ Inc,
_ 

We have éuditéd the ‘acciompanying.'finan_cia| statements of- Pro\1incia|« Métis Holdco lnc., which"
I 

-c'o‘mprise’ the statements of financial position as.a_t:Dec_em4be'r 31, 201‘2.~December 31, 2011 and 
H 

' January 2011; the statements bf operationst changes in net assets and cash flows for the‘ years 
then" ended, and notes, comprising a summary‘ of significant accounting "policies and other 
explanatdry information. ' ‘ 

’ 

_ 

' 

Management's Responsibility for the‘ Finanéial Statémehts 

T 
A 

Management isresponsible for the pireparatiaon and féir presérifation of these financial statements in 
‘ .accordance wit_h'Canadian accounting standards for no’t—for-profit organizatiQr'1s, and for such internal 
‘control as management determines is’neVC_e§sary to enable me.p'repa_ration«of financial statements that 
are free from_ material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error‘. . 

V 

"V 

‘Auditors? Respo~nsibility 

Oqr fésporisibility "is to express gin opinion‘ on thesé financial staternents based on our audit. We 
conducted our _‘audit in accordance_with Canadian. generally ‘-accepted auditing standards. Those 
‘standards requirefthat we comply with ethical requirements and plan andperform the audit to obtain 

V 

~ reasonable assurance about‘wheth'er.the financial statements'ar_e freé from material misstatement. 

. An audit invdives performing procedures to obtain audit evidén¢é.ébout the am_ounts and disclosures 
’ 

in the financia'|"statém_ents. The procedures. selected depend on oufjudgment, including the ‘I 

- assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements‘, whether due’to fraud or 
' 

error.~ lrimaking ‘assessments, we consider'ihternal _contro‘|A relevant to the entity's 

preparation and fair presentation‘ of "the financial statements in border to designaudit procedures that ' 

are ‘appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the. 
~ effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of _' 

accouhting.po|icies used and theréasonableness -of accountingestimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. . 

.

' 

We believe that the audit e\_/idence We have obtained is sufficient ‘and appropriate to provide a basis'~ 
"for" our audit opinion’. 

A 
Opinion 

|n.our'opinion thefinancial statements‘ present fairly, in all material respects, th»e~financial position of 
' Provincial Métis Hoidco Inc. as at December 31. 2012. December 31, 2011, and January 1, 2011 and 

_the' results of itsoperations and_it_s cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 
‘ 

V 31, 2011 in accordance with Canadian accouhting standards for_n_ot-for-profit organizations; 

Chartéred _Accofintants 
VJuné74,.2O12 .- 

j 
_' 

‘ 

” ‘Saskatoon, Canada KPMG LLP. js a Canadiadllmiléd liability parinersnip and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of Independent member firmsaffiliated with KPMG Inlemajional Cooper'at_lve 
(‘KPMG International‘). a Swiss entity. '

' 

KPMG Canada pros/i’de's ssryices lo KPMG LLP.



-‘»State‘rm'ant-of Financial PO_si_fi9n . 

‘ 
’ 

_

. 

_December 31, 2012,AI_3ecember’31. 2011 and January 1, 2011 
_

' 

°PRovINcIAL 

'DeCem_ber'31, 
4 

‘ 
' December'31, -Janu_ary1,

' 

2012 I f 2011 . 2011. 

Assets 
I 

Current assets: _ 

. 
V 

» 

_

v 

' Cash « 

' 

$ 
_ 

377,836 - $. 526,642 363,547 
Guaranteed investment ‘ 

_ 

5 

’ 

» 

_ 

.

A 

'certificate(not_e 2) 22,135 22.135 22,135 g 
Acoc_aunts»recei\_/able -~ 16,431 8,791 9,971 . 

~- 

Prepaid expenses; 
. 

29,049 29,049 40,968 
‘ 

. Due from Métis Nation -. 

I‘ Saskatchewan » 

_Se_cretariat mc. . 150;000. _ 

- 150,000. 
595,451 586,617 586,621

' 

. Leasehbld improvements (nqte 3).’ 50,843‘ 
_ 

84,739 107,336 

$’ 
;e4e,294: $. 

‘ 

671,356‘ -693,95'7f 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
’Curfént liabilities:

A 

Accounts payable "and 
accrued liabilities’ . 

. $ 9,835 $ 14,934 13,301 
_ 

Due to Métis Nation - - 
. 

‘
‘ 

Saskatchewan 
Secretariat‘ 
Inc: , 

V ’ 

- 124 - 

Dueto SaskMétis Economic_ . 
.- 

Development Corporation (note'4) 8,441 53,991 _ 
-95,227. ' 

' “ ' ‘ 

18,276 69,049 108,528 .. A- 

’Neta~ssets: ‘ 

.

' 

Unrestricted 628,018 602,307 585,429 ' ' 

Comr-nitrnents (note 5)
I 

‘6'46;294 $ 671,356 ~69~3.9_57 ' 

Sée éccompanying lnhotlésv to fina‘n<.:ia| statements.‘ 
' I ‘ 

‘ Ohbéhalf . 

' 
'

' 

I ~ 
‘ /gr 1 Director. ~ 

' 

«Diréctor ‘



~PRC:)V|NCIALME1'|$~H()LDCO INC. 
~ 

‘_Sfa'teri1ent~of ('Jper"atiOn's4
~ 

‘ 

‘ ‘Years ended December 31.,’ 2(')12"and 201-1 

2012 
_ 

-- 2011" 

Rental income (related drganizations) 
‘ ' 

- $ 252.904 $ 255,001 

Expenses: ‘ 

‘

. 

: omce rent . . 
_ 

- 144,606 - 145,681‘ 
Amortization of leasehold improyements 33,896 22,597 

. Common area _(e_|ectrica|) 16.164 18,411 
’ 

Professional_fees I A. ‘ 

. 
° 

1 

11,888 
' ‘ 

V 
15,007 

‘ 

V Janitorial A 

, _ 

~ 9.660 ‘ 

V 

' ‘ ’ 

. 
. 13,421 

Common area.(gas) I . 4 3,313 . 3,531 
Interest on long-term _debt 

_ _ A 

3,151 7,483 
Grounds and‘parkir_1g'lot-maintenance 

' 

. . 

’ 1,876 2,148 
' 

Repairs andmaintenance ' 

. 
‘ 

' 

_ 

- 

’ 

1,358 - 7,418 
Common 4area.(water and sewer) ' ' 

. 1,079 1,514 ’ 

Bank charges ' 

’ 

. , 

- 

' 

~ 202 . 912. 
- 

- V 

. 

' 
' 

' ~ 
' ‘ 

’ 

227.193 
‘ 

238,123 

'. "Excess of revenue overexpenses 
_ V _ 

' 

_ _ 

' 

$ _25,711 $ . 
16.878'_ 

. 

See accompariying notes to financial statements.



Mléns HoLpco INC. 
Statementiof Changes in Net Assets 

»

- 

- Year's~eVndedV_D_ece'mber 31, 2012 and 2011 

201.2 
* 

_ 

V 

2;-2011 

~Ba|a.ncé, beginning ofyear 
' 

. f 
' 

. $ 602,307 '$ ’.’585.429 

’ Excess _of.revenue over expenses ' .. 

_ ‘ 
25,711‘ 

A 

' 

~16.8_78 
_ 

4’ 

- VB'aIancAe,‘ end ofyeaf - - 
4_ 

' ' 

7 
_ 

V 

$~ 
V 

I 

b523.;01f3 I 
‘ $ .602,I§07_

. 

See accompanyfng notes _to financial statements.



METIS 
' 

Statemént of Cash'Fl_oWs 

Yeérsendéd Depemuber 31,2012 and 2011 

2012 I 
h 

2011 

Cash from ‘(used in): 

Operations: 
I 

» 

_ 
_ 

. .

V 

Excessiof revenueover expenses ' $ 25,711 $ ~ 16,878 
Item notjnvolving cash: 

' 

Amortization ofleasehold improvemeqts _33,896 , 
22,597- 

Change in non-cash .operat_ing»workin'g capital: 
A

. 

Accounts’receivable‘ - 
- (7,640) ~ 1,180 

Prepaid expenses ' 

- 
_ _ 

11,919 
Accountspayabié and accrued. liabilities (5.099) . 

. 
. 1,634 W -. ’ 

« 46.868’ »~.‘54,208- 
V 

_ 

Financ-:ing:A - 
.

H 

Deprease (increase) in due from (to) Métis Nation — 
"

. 

Saskatchewan Secretariatlnc. (150,124) ' 

. 150,124 
Principal .pvayr.n,ents on debt. I 

_ 

. (45,550) . (41,237) 
. 

' 

_ 

A 

' 

(195,674) '"108,887 
I 

|n¢réase:(decrea.s'e).in cas~h~position, 
I 

' 

(148,8O6)v < 

, 
~163,095. 

Cashpositiombeginning.ofyear 
‘ 

. 

526,642 3363,54? 
' 

Cash p'osition,<.-:-nd_of.y'e’ar_'_ 
' 

_ 

‘_ 
‘ ' 

’ 

’ " ' 

$ .377_,8.36 
' 

‘ 

$ 
_ 

‘ 

526,642. 

‘ 

. Cash:position is comprisedof the following: 
' 

' g . 

’ 

Cash in bank account . 

‘ ‘ 

_ 

$- 12,885 $ . 

: 

16,066 
Cash intrust account (note 6)- 364,951 510,576 « 

' A 4 4 ' 

' 

$, '377,836 
‘A 

$ '‘.526,642‘ 

_Supplemeniél cash flow diéclosure:
. 

In_terest paid ' 

' 

. 

. $ 3.151 s . 7.483 

See acéompanying hofes.to financ_ial‘statements.



INC; 
. 

“ Notes"to Financial Statéménts 

' Years _ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 V 

- General: 

‘The’ Company was _inco'rp_orated July 15_,- 1992~‘und_er'_.th'e’Non-P?pfit_"Corporations-Act'of — 

—S‘askatche_waAn,_. with‘ one class of membership'con_sisting of‘two:'ch§rtér' members, _The Métis 
Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc." and Provincial. Métis Hdusihg Corporation. The purpose 
,of the Company is tovpromo'té_t'he economic and socia! welfare of ‘persons of Métisvorigin "and to 
provide support'for'repognized benevolent and charitable ‘ehterprises, federations, agencies and 
societies engaged iri assisting the deveIopment,'both economic ahd social '91‘ _Métis citizens.

' 

The Company curren’dy.‘leases an office building in Sa'sk.e1toon,»’Saskatche\/van which it r.én_ts 'tb 

other organizations. The Company's mandate is _served by renting office spacefto organizations’ 
_. 
providing services to_Métis citizens and by providing financial subport to such brganizatiohs. ' 

V 

Due to the nat~ure~of its acfiitiés, the Company is not iaxable for income. fax purposesfinder 
section 149 of the Income_Tax Act.

A 

On JanuaryI1, 201.1, the Company adopted Canadian‘Ac_>counting Standards ‘for NAot9For~-Prof‘ut 
. Organizations in Part III of the-CICA Handbook (Not-Fdr-Profit These are the first 
financial statements‘prepared in accordance with Not-For-Profit Standards. 

In accordancé 'with‘the trahsitibnal provisions in Not-:Fc~>r’-Pr<~3f'§t Standards,‘ the Cqrppanyv has 
adopted thefchanges ”re'trospectiveIy. The transition date is January 1, 2011 and all comparative 
information providedfhas been presented ‘by_ applying Not’-For-Profit Standards. Therewere no 
a_djus}tments.arising on transitibn ‘and no exemptions were.e_|ected. 

Significant éc¢ouhting' pbliéies: 

~ 

(a)_ Use of "estimates: 

_ The preparaiién ‘of finéncial statements’ requires mariagement to make estimates and- 

‘assumptions that affect: the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
. conti_ngent,assets_'ahd_ liabilities at the date of the financiahstatements and the reported

' 

amount ‘of revenue and expenses during ,the reporting period-.' Actua|_"reSuIts céuld differ 
from these estimates. . 

= 
'

~
'



METIS HOLDCO, INC, 
Notes to FinanciaI.Sta'temenis (continued) 

’. 

Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 

V. 
1. Signjficant apbountifig policies (continued): 

'

. 

(b)_ Capital as'sets‘anAd amortization: 

-(.0) 

(d) 

Capital "assets afe carried ét cost if purchased, or féir value at the date‘ of acquisitioh if 
‘

. 

received" by gift. Proceeds of disposals, léss carryjng~va_|ues ofthese assets are reported in 
the statement of revenue and expensesas gains or losses on ‘disposal; Amortization_is

‘ 

provided fbrlusing the follbwing method.-and rates: 

‘Method 7
_ 

Asset « 

48 months Leasehold ‘improvements 
' 

- (lease term) 
Straight-line

' 

Revenue reco‘ghition: 

The Company recognizes revenue as it accrues in accordance with the terms of its rental 
agreements,. provided reasonable assurance exists regarding measurement and 
coflectibility. 

' 
' " ‘ 

‘Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at’ fair value. on initial recognition and subsequently 
recorded a_t.fair valueor amortized cost as ‘follows: j 

-

' 

Cash and in_\}estrhents - fair valfie 
Accounts receivable and accounts payable - amortized cost 

Trahsaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
-sub‘se_quérjt_!y at.f_air valueare expensed asincurred. A||_otherffi_nancia_l instruments are 
adjusted by: transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs; which are - 

‘ ‘amortized.u'si‘ngt'he straight-line method. 
'

» 

Rate
V



PROVIANCIAL METIS HoLDco«|Nc.] 
Notes“t6 Fina_ricial.’Sfatements (contihued)' 

‘ 

Years‘ ended December 31,. 2o12_and 2011 

'1'. flsignlfidant accouhting poIi¢ies(c_ontinued):
' 

Financial assetsare assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal
' 

year if there are indicators Of impairment. If therefis an indicator ofirhpairment, the Company_
_ 

. determines if there is a significant ‘adverse change inthe expected _amount or’ timing of future 
4

- 

cash flows from the financial asset; lfthere is a significant adverse change in the expected - 

cash flows; the carrying_'va|ué of the financial asset is reduced to thehighest of the'pres'ent 
value of'theA expected cash flows, the’ mount that céuld be realized from selling the financial 
asset or the amount the ‘Company expects to realize by exercising" its right to any "collateral. 

' 

If-events‘ and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss wi||.be reversed 
, 
to théextent of the imprgjvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value. 

V

' 

‘ 2. Guaranteed investment certificatef 

The~guarantee_d investment certificate bears interést at _a vériable rate‘ (currently 1.1%) and 
_ 

matures November 29,2013. It is pledged as secu_rityffor the line of credit of Métis Nation - 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. at the Royal Bank of Canada. ‘
V



PROVINCIAL METIsHoLDco’INc.. 
4 

* 

-N<>tes"’t‘r’.> Financial‘Statéments (cbhtinued)' 
‘ ‘ 

‘ 

v ~Year;._s ended Decembér 31, 2012 and 2011 

3. Leaseholdnimpfovgmentsz. 

A 

» Accumulated‘ Net. book 
Dec_ember‘31. 2012 Q 

‘ 

, 

f 
_ 
Cost amortization 

_ 

value 

Leasehold improvements ’ 
‘ 

. 

_ 

$ 129.933 $ 79,090 $- 50,843 

A 
A 

4 

Accumulated 
I 

Net book ’ 

December 31 , 2011 ’ 

. A 
Cost amortization value 

Leasehold improvements 
’ 

"3 129,933 $ 45,194 $ 84,739 

Accumulated Nétbbok 
V

V 

January1,2011 _ 

4 

_ 
Cost amortization 

_ 
value 5 

Leaseholdiimproyéments $ 129,933 $ 22,597 $ 107,336‘ 

During the ‘current. year, the ‘Company revised its ’estimate for calculating amortization on 
"leasehold improvements. This revision resulted in reducingfhe amortization period from 69 

’ months to 48_ months to.corfespond with the remaining negotiated lease term. The result was an 
' 

increase in amortization in the current year o’f'$11,299 as compared to the previous estimate.



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
-Notes ‘to FinarIcial.Sta’te'r‘fie’-nts (cbntihued) 

~-Years ended December 31 .2012 and 2011 

4. Dué to SaskMétis_ Eédnomk: Development ‘Corporati§n':' 

1 December 31, : De_cemb~er 31 ,~ January 1_, 
2012 "2011 -- 20,11 

Sask Métis Ecp_nor‘nic‘Deve|opment 
-Corpora'tion:d,em,ar'Id loan payable in monthly A 

instalments of $4,075 incl'uding_.interest at 
10%, secured. by demand.promissory note, ‘ 

cash in trust accounts, general _security 
agreement on al!- prOp'erty;an_d assignment of 
insurance, due 2013 

‘ 
‘ 

'

- _$ _ 
3,441 $ 53,991 $ 

, 

‘95,22i 

Estimated principal‘ repayménts -on the démand based on scheduled "repayments are_ as 
fdliowsz ' 

’ 
' 

» - 

2013 V 

_ 

'- “ 
' 

A 

. $ 8,441 

5.. Commitments:_ 
I H 

The Company. leéses dffice space pursuant to thehterms of an operating lease expiring 
September‘30, 201-3. The ‘estimated future minimum payments including occupancy costs 

A

‘ 

are as follows: 

2013 
A. 

- 

‘ 

V 

‘ 

$ 104,042



1 
j HFOLDCO INC. 
Notes ‘t6 Financialfitatements (contin~u’ed)

. 

Yéafsendéd Decembér 31 ,. 2012 and 2011 

6. Related party 4transéctio"ns_: 

rents received duringthe year fro'fn.organizat_io,n,s related by common. membership bécurred in 
’the~rpormal« course 'of‘<_3perations and were" measured at the exchange amount. which is the_ 
amount of consideration, established and agreed to by the re|ated*p'arties. A summary of these

_ 

rents are" as follows: ‘ 

2012 
_ 

- 2011 

Métis Nation 7-Saskatchewansecretariat lnc._ .’ - $ -180,833 $ 156,766 
_ 

Sask Métis Economic Development Corporation 32,089 ’ 

» .» 42,786 
' Provincial Métis Housing Corp‘o'ra'tion 

A 
22,932 

‘ 

22,522 
Métis'Addiction's Council of Saskatchewan Inc. 12,500’ A 30,000 

. Other. 
' 

-‘ 
.

A 4,550 2,927 « 

$ 5 252.904 A$, '255,od1. 

During the year a demand promissory note in the amount of $150,000'w'as issued to Métis Nation 
~- Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc.. This promissory note is to be repaigi in annual payments of 
$50,000 up to“July 31, 2015. 

. 

’ 
’ ' ‘ 

s -A" reconciliation of the cash in trust account is’ aslfollowsz 

2012
_ 

Balahce, January 1A,A2O1;I 
. 

, 

V 

. $ 357,969A 
Interest earned .— 

_ 

2,607 
. Repayment of advances by Métis-Nation .- Saskatchewan Secretariat |nc_.- (i) . 150,000 

Balance, D'ec_embe‘rV31. 201.1‘ - 

' 

_ _ 610,576 
V 

lnterestleamed 
V 

- 

y 

, 
4.375‘. 

Advances to Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. (ii) ' 

. (150,000) 

Bala~nce',Decerfiber31,2012_ . 

' ' 

' 

, 

V 

_ 

’_ 
i S "364,'9_51‘ 

(i) The advance‘ was originally made in 2010 {of purposes of -assisting‘ with the annual Back to 
Batoche festival. This advance was rep'ai_d in 2011. '

‘ 

(ii) The advance. wasmade in 2012'for.the purposes of assisting with provincial elections fdr the 
’ 

v Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat. ‘This advance is" secured by a-démand_pro'rnissory 
note'to- be _repaid to the Company in ah_nuaI payments of $50,000 over_t_he next three years. The‘ _. 

‘ advancewas conditional on the Office of _.the Federal lnterlocutor confirming a $200,000 5
‘ 

Contribution to » 

;_1’o



~~PROV|NC|AL»METlS HOLDCO INC. ». 

Notejs'to Finariclal Stateménts (continued) V

- 

Years éhded December 31, 2o12Vand‘2o11 ,

. 

' 7. Financial instruments: 

~ The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use offinancial instruments: 

8) Liquidity risk:~ 

.Liq‘uidjty risk ‘is the~risk that‘ the Company wm be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely. 
.

_ 

basis or at’ a’ reasonable cost. The Company managesits liquidly risk by monitoring its 
' ‘ 

~operating requirements‘ and ensuring it has sufficient funds to _fuIfllI.its Obligations. 
' ' 

Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers .to the risk that abounterparty ma~y default on its contractual obligations 
‘ resulting in .fi_nancia_! loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk withrespect to cash, .' 

investments and accounts receivable. The Company assesses credit risk on a continuous 
basis on accounts receivabIe and provides for any amounts that are not collectiblé in the '

' 

‘auowance fqr ‘doubtful accounts. 
A ‘ 

’ minimal as the _counterparties' are chartered banks with high credit ratings assigned by
' 

Credit risk on cash and inyestments areconsidered 

national credit-rating agencies. 

" 

Interest rafe risk: 

The Company is efiposed to‘ interest rate risk on its guaranteed investment certificate, ‘This 
risk is considered minimal due to ‘the short-term period to maturity of the investment. 

1-1
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KPMG LLP‘ V 
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A ‘ . . Telephoné ‘(306).934-6v200,.
' 

'QhaIrtefre_d Accountants 
_ 

' ' 

t 

A -Fax - 

. (306) 934-6233 
- 500;-.475 Second Avenue South‘ . 

' 

V 
‘ 

Internet wvvw.kpmg'.cé 
Saslgatooh‘ Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 _‘ 

.' I‘ 

. 

- - 
. 

‘ 

.'
' 

Canada 
' 

‘

- 

AUmToRs' RE:FORTv‘ { 

. ,To the Members o_f'Pr§vincial-Méfis. Holdcojnc.‘ 
’ 

_ 

Wefhavé audited 'Aacco‘mp:any_ihg fihéncial_Cs'ta'tem_ents of_ Provincial “M,é;'tis Holdco -in"c..< which'~ 
5 cojmpfise the statément of financial positionjas.‘at_.December '31; 2013', thestatéments of dperations, ' ' 

_changes in net assets" and cash flows for the" y'e‘ar‘then ended, and notes; cbfriprising a’ sqmmary of " I . 

‘ 

"I 

‘ 'fsignific§_nt‘accounting policies and other explan_ato_ry.infprmat_ic'>ri,. , 
' ' 

V 

‘" 
T ‘ ‘ '

" 
' ‘Managefhéntb .R‘es;pohéibiIztyror'the Finanbialstalemenis

_ 

' Managémen't.is respdnsible for {He hprt-,zp'aratic>_n.and fair preséntétion of ‘these financial 
I 

.' I ' 
" 

-

I 

acco_fdance with Cahadian accounting standards for not-‘for-profit organizations", and for such internal 
control as management detéfmines as ne9e$sary_tp'enabje the preparation of-financial statements that"

' 

‘ 

. 
are,'free_jfrom mat_e.ria|:misstatement,-whetherdug to fraud or error. 5 

‘

~ 

' 

Audi;t:_rs' Responsibility 

‘Our responsibility is '16, expfess ‘ah-opinion on these financial statements based on duréudit. We 
conductedi our 'a'u'dit_' in ‘accordance with Canadian" generally. accepted auditing standards._ Those 

; standafds require that-‘we comp|y.with ‘ethical. requirements and plan and perform the auditto obtain" 
fea"sonable assuranpé about whéther the financjéj statements are free‘ from material missiatementfi 

An audit involves‘ bérfbrming prooédures to obtairi alidit evidenée about the amoU_hts aindidilsclosures 
in the.’ financial Statementsl -The _pro'ceddres' ~se|_eptéd.’depend on Aou_r'_judV‘g';ment, ‘including _the‘ 
-’as’sesSbm_e'nt, of th'e_"risks_'of material misstatérnerit of _the financial. _stateme'nts,_'whefhe_r dué _fo fraud, or 
.error. 

. |n‘making~thVo'_se risk assessments, wefconsider internal control" relevant to. the entity's 
"

‘ 

prepara'tion.and fa'irfpr,ese'ntation of the~fina_ncial ‘statements in order to design audit procedures that
V 

V. are appropriate in‘ the‘ circumstances. but not for.the purpose of expressing _an_ opinion on the 
effectiveness of th‘e.‘enfi_ty‘s internal contrél. An‘ audit also includes evaluating «théappropriateness of 
a_cc;‘ounting‘poliéies u_sed ’a‘nd~the reasonabIene_ss‘of accouhting estimates madeby man'ageme_nt. as * 1 

well as evaluatingihe overall presentation of the financial’stateménts. 

for bur audit opinion, .' 

.' We believe that theiéudit evidence we have obiafned is éufficient pros’/idé a basi's~ .. 

- Opinion 

‘In ‘our bpinionjhe finén¢iaI staterfiénts p_reséni~fairly, all material respects‘, the financialjiosition of .’
- 
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PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO IANC. 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012 

2013 2012 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 312,074 377,836 
Guaranteed investment certificate (note 2) 22,135 22,135 
Accounts receivable 1,648 16,431 
Prepaid expenses 25,056 29,049 
Due from Métis Nation - Saskatchewan 
Secretariat Inc. (note 3) 282.052 150.000 

642,965 595,451 

Leasehold improvements (note 4) 17,062 50,843 

$ 660,027 646,294 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10,521 9,835 
Due to SaskMétis Economic 
Development Cogaoration (note 5) - 8.441 

10,521 18,276 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted 649,506 628,018 

Commitments (note 6) 

$ 660.027 646,294 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of th

< 
Director\



PROVlNClAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Statement of Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012 

2013 2012 

Revenue: 
Rental revenue (note 3) $ 267,631 $ 248,354 
Interest and other income 3,504 4,550 

271,135 252,904 

Expénses: 
Office rent , 

156,926 144,606 
Amortization of leasehold improvements 52,395 33,896 
Common area (electrical) 16,299 16,164 
Professional fees 11,806 1 1 .888 
Repairs and maintenance 5,379 1,358 
Common area (gas) 2.533 3,313 
Grounds and parking lot maintenance 2,442 1,876 
Common area (water and sewer) 1,467 1,079 
Bank charges 268 202

4 

Interest on long-term debt 75 3,151 
Office and general 57 - 

Janitorial - 9,660 
249,647 227,193 

Excess of revenue over expenses :5 21,488 $ 25,711 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012 

2018 2012 

Balance, beginning of year $ 628,018 $ 602,307 

Excess of revenue over expenses 21.488 25,711 

$ 649,506 $ 628,018 Balance, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



' PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012 

2013 2012 

Cash flows from (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenue over expenses 21,488 $ 25,711 
Item not involving cash: 

Amortization of leasehold improvements 52,395 33,896 
Change in non-cash operating working capital: _ 

Accounts receivable 14,783 (7,640) 
Prepaid expenses 3,993 - 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 686 (5,093) 
93,345 46,868 

Financing: 
Advances to Métis Nation - Saskatchewan 
Secretariat Inc. (132,052) (150,124) 

Principal payments on due to SaskMétis Economic 
Development Corporation (8,441) (45,550) 

(140,493) (195,674) 

Investing: 
Purchase of ieasehold improvements (18,614) - 

Decrease in cash position (65,762) (148,806) 

Cash position. beginning of year 377.836 526,642 

Cash position, end of year 312,074 $ 377,836 

Cash position is comprised of the following: 
Cash in bank account 193,862 $ 12,885 
Cash in trust account (note 3) 118,212 364,951 

312,074 $ 377,836 

Supplemental cash flow disclosure: 
Interest paid 75 $ 3,151 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2013 

General: 

Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated July 15, 1992 under the Non- 
Profit Corporations Act of Saskatchewan, with one class of membership consisting of two charter 
members, The Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat inc. and Provincial Métis Housing 
Corporation. The purpose of the Company is to promote the economic and social welfare of 
persons of Métis origin and to provide suppon for recognized benevolent and charitable 
enterprises, federations. agencies and societies engaged in assisting the deveiopment, both 
economic and social of Métis citizens. 

The Company currently leases an office building in Saskatoon. Saskatchewan which it rents to 
other organizations. The Company's mandate is served by renting office space to organizations 
providing services to Métis citizens and by providing financial support to such organizations. 

Due to the nature of its activities, the Company is not taxable for income tax purposes under 
section 149 of the Income Tax» Act. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

(a) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Iiabiiities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to 
estimation and assumptions include the timing and collectibility of amounts due from Métis 
Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat |nc.. a related party. Actual results could differ from 
these estimates. 

(b) Capital assets and amortization: 

Capital assets are carried at cost if purchased, or fair value at the date of acquisition if 

received by gift. Proceeds of disposals, less carrying values of these assets are reported in 
the statement of revenue and expenses as gains or losses on disposal. Amorfuzation is 
provided for using the following method and rates: 

Asset Method Rate 

Leasehold improvements Straight-line 36 months 
(lease term)



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31. 2013 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(0) Revenue recognition: 

The Company recognizes revenue as it accrues in accordance with the terms of its rental 
agreements, provided reasonable assurance exists regarding measurement and 
collectibility. 

Financial instruments: 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently 
recorded at fair value or amortized cost as foliowsz 

Cash and guaranteed investment certificate are classified as financial assets and measured 
at fair value. Fair value fluctuations in these assets which may include interest earned, 
interest accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses are 
included in revenue. 

Accounts receivable are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized 
cost. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other liabilities and measured at 
amortized cost. 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the straight-line method. 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal 
year if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Company 
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 
cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the expected 
cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 
value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from selling the financial 
asset or the amount the Company expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral. 
If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed 
to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2013 

2. Guaranteed investment certificate: 

The guaranteed investment certificate bears interest at a variable rate (currently 1.05%) and 
matures November 29, 2014. It is pledged as security for the line of credit of Métis Nation - 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. at the Royal Bank of Canada. 

3. Related party transactions: 

All rents received during the year from organizations related by common membership occurred in 
the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange amount, which is the 
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. A summary of these 
rents are as follows: 

2013 2012 

Métls Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. $ 247,469 $ 180,833 
Provincial Métis Housing Corporation 18.119 22,932 
Round Prairie Ventures Inc. 2,042 - 

Sask Métis Economic Development Corporation — 32,089 
Métis Addictions Council of Saskatchewan Inc. - 12,500 

$ 267,630 $ 248,354 

During 2012 a demarid promissory note in the amount of $150,000 was issued to Métis Nation - 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. ("MNS"). This promissory note is to be repaid in annual payments 
of $50,000 to July 31, 2015. 

A reconciliation of the cash in trust account is as follows:



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31. 2013 

3. Related party transactions (continued): 

2013 2012 

Balance. beginning of year $ 364,951 $ 510,576 
Transfer to Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. cash account (250,000) - 

Advances to Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. ~ (150,000) 
Interest earned 3,261 4,375 
Balance, and of year $ 118,212 $ 364,951 

A reconciliation of the due from Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. is as follows: 

2013 2012 

Balance, beginning of year (i) $ 150.000 $ (124) 
Advances to Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. (ii) 160,385 150,124 
Repayments from Métis Nation - Saskatchewan 
Secretariat Inc. (iii) (28,333) - 

Balance, end of year $ 282,052 $ 150,000



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31. 2013 

3.’ Related party transactions (continued): 

(i) The balance consists of an advance in the amount of $150,000 that was made in 2012 for the 
purposes of assisting with provincial elections for the Métis Nation - Saskatchewan 
Secretariat. This advance is secured by a demand promissory note to be repaid to the entity 
in annual payments of $50,000. The expected date of full repayment is July 31, 2015. 

(ii) Advances to Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat during the year consisted of: (a) legal 
expenses of $45,187 paid on behalf of MN-S; (b) Métis Nation Legislative Assembly (MNLA) 
expenses of $28,333 paid on behalf of MN-S and; (c) Powley C programme expenses of 
$86,865 paid on behalf of MN-S. 

(iii) Current year repayment consists of repayment of the $28,333 advance relating to MNLA 
expenses. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2013, the Company paid additional expenses of the Métis Nation - 

Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. of approximately $83,000. The Company has been paying certain 
expenses of the MN-S due to an ongoing dispute between members of MN-S with respect to 
governance matters. The Company expects to be repaid by MN-S for amounts advanced to and 
expenses paid on behalf of MN-S. However there is uncertainty with respect to the ultimate 
timing and collectibility of these amounts. The Company also rents space to MN-S and the 
ongoing dispute at MN-S may have an impact of the ability of MN-S to continue to pay rent to the 
Company. 

4. Leasehold improvements: 

Accumulated 
Cost amortization 2013 2012 

Leasehold improvements $ 18,613 $ (1.551) $ 17,062 $ 50.843 

$ 18,613 $ (1,551) $ 17.062 $ 50,843 

During the current year, the Company relocated to new office premises. The remaining net book 
value of leasehold improvements relating to the previous office premises in the amount of 
$50,843 has been fully amortized to expense in the current year. Leasehold improvement 
additions relating to the new office premises has been capitalized in the current year and will be 
amortized over the negotiated lease tenn.



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2013 

5. Due to SaskMétis Economic Development Corporation: 

2013 2012 

Sask Métis Economic Development Corporation demand loan 
payable in monthly instalments of $4.075 including interest at 
10%, secured by demand promissory note, cash in trust 

. accounts, general security agreement on all property and 
assignment of insurance, due 2013 $ - $ 8,441 

6. Commitments: 

The Company leases office space pursuant to the terms of an operating lease expiring 
September 30, 2016. The estimated future minimum lease payments including occupancy costs 
are as follows: 

2014 $ 108,185 
2015 108,185 
2016 81,139 

$ 297,509 

7. Financial instruments: 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

a) Liquidity risk: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to fuifill its obiigations on a timely 
basis or at a reasonable cost. The Company manages its liquidly risk by monitoring its 

operating requirements and ensuring it has sufficient funds to fulfill its obligations.

10



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. 
Notes to Financia! Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2013 

7. Financial instruments (continued): 

b) 

0) 

Credit risk: 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk with resbect to cash, 
investments accounts receivable and amounts due from Métis Nation - Saskatchewan 
Secretariat Inc. The Company assesses credit risk on a continuous basis on accounts 
receivable and provides for any amounts that are not collectible in the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Credit risk on cash and invesiments are considered minimal as the counterpanies 
are chartered banks with high credit ratings assigned by national credit—rating agencies. 
Credit risk on amounts due from Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. arises from 
an ongoing dispute between members of MN-S with respect to governance matters and 
depends on the ability of the members to resolve their differences. 

Interest rate risk: 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its guaranteed investment certificate. This 
risk is considered minimal due to the short-term period to maturity of the investment.

11
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Executive summary 
Overview 
The purpose‘ of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you in your review of the results of our 
audits of the financial statements of Métis Nation-Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. as at and for the 
years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013. The Audit Findings Report should ‘not be used for any 
other purpose or by anyone other than management and the Provincial Métis Council. 

Status 
We have completed the audit of the financial statements and the financial statements along with 

' 

our related auditors’ reports have been filed with the funding agencies. 

' This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Provincial Métis 
Council. KPMG shall have no responsibility or liability for loss or damages or claims, if any. to or by any third party as 
this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third 
party or for any other purpose. 
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Significant audit, accounting and reporting 
matters ' 

Included in this report are significant matters we have highlighted for discussion at the upcoming 
meefing. We look forward to discussing these matters and our findings with you. 
Topics to Discuss 

Below are topics identified from the audit that we have highlighted for discussion at the 
upcoming Provinciai Métis Council meeting. We look forward to discussing our findings with 
you.

0 

o 
I 

For year ened'March 31, 2054, the Métis Nation had a deficiency of revenue over 
expenses of $160,000 compared to 2013 deficiency of $136,000. This represents an 
overall increase of $24,000 in the deficiency compared to prior year. 

a Contributing to the overall deficiency of $160,000 at March 31, 2014 were the following: 
decrease in federal funding revenue of approximately $68,000; significant changes 
from the prior year include decreases in funding for Electoral Preparedness of 
$200,000, Tripartite Self Government Program of $283,000 and MNS Transition of 
$110,000 offset by increases in federal funding for Cultural Connections for Aboriginal 
Youth of $125,000, Post Powlev Component C (Deloitte Report) of $242,000 and 
Genealogical and Historical of $1 12,000; - 

decrease in provincialfunding revenue of approximately $518,000; significant changes 
include decreases in funding for Bilateral Program of $100,000, Tripartite Self 
Government Program of $283,000, Green Light Program of $53,000 and Health 
Suicide Prevention of $148,000 offset by increases in provinciai funding for Legislative 
Review of $95,000; 
Other sourceé of revenue outside of federal and provincial funding were $23,000 
(compared to $33,000 in 2013); 
Overall expenses have decreased by $571,000 commensurate with decreased federal 
and provincial funding levels; 
Contributing to the overall deficiency of approximately $160,000 were legal and 
professional fees of $129,000 and Métis Nation Legislative expenses of $40,000; 
these amounts were unable to be allocated to program activities covered by federal 
and provincial funding and largely are what contributed to the March 31, 2014 Ioss of 
$160,000. 
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o For the year ended March 31, 2013, the Métis Nation had a deficiency of revenue over 
expenses of $136,000 compared to 2012 deficiency of $10,000. This represents an overall 
increase of $126,000 in the deficiency compared to the prior year. 

0 Contributing to the overall deficiency of $136,000 at March 31, 201 3' were the following: 
0 increase in federal funding revenue of approximately $501,000; significant changes 

from the prior year include increases in funding for Electoral Preparedness of 
$138,000, MNS Transition of $1 10,000, Post Powley Component A of $85,000, Post 
Powley Component C of $127,000 and Genealogical and Historical of $194,000; offset 
by decreases in federal funding for Registry Engagement Work plan of $98,000 and 
Arbitration Appeals of $28,000; 

a decrease in provincial funding revenue of approximately $56,000; significant changes 
include increases in funding for Green Light Program of $1 1 1,000, Education Task 
Force of $117,000,Health Suicide Prevention of $148,000 and Legislative Review of 
$11,000. offset by decreases in provincial funding for Harvesting Negotiations of 
$269,000, Child Welfare Review of $49,000, Health Director Initiative of $38,000 and 
Environment of $95,000: 

0 Other sources of revenue outside of federal and provincial funding were $33,000 
(compared to $8,000 in 2012) 

0 Overall expenses have increased by $595,000 commensurate with increased federal 
funding levels; 

0 Contributing to the overall deficiency of approximately $136,000 were additional 
unfunded election expenses of $145,000; these amounts were unable to be allocated 
to program activities covered by federal and provincial funding and largely are what 
contributed to the March 31, 2013 loss of $136,000. 

Audit findings report to the audit committee P a g e |
4



These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting 
standards for not-for-profit organizations applicable for a going concern, which contemplates 
the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal course of operations. 
The Métis Nation has experienced a deficiency of revenue over expenses of $160,000 
(2013-$136,000), has a negative working capital position of $487,000 (2013 -$ 279,000) and 
a negative operating fund deficit of $537,000 (2013 - $ 379,000). 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. ("PMHC") (a related organization) has paid certain expenses of 
Métis Nation due to an ongoing dispute between members of the Métis Nation with 
respect to governance matters. These amounts have been expensed in the financiafi 
statements with a corresponding payable to PMHC. 
The above factors raise significant doubt about the Métis Nation's ability to continue as a 
going concern. The ability of the Métis Nation to continue as a going coricern and realize its 
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations is dependent upon its 
ability to generate cash flow and surplus from operations, the continued support from its 
funders and the resolution of the governance matters described above. The outcome of 
these matters cannot be determined at this time. 
These financial statements do not reflect any adjustments in the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities, the reported deficiency or revenue over expenses and the statement of 
financial position classifications that would be necessary if the going concern assumptions 
were not appropriate.

* 

The Métis Nations overall financial position has deteriorated in the past fiscal year and the 
working capital deficiency has deteriorated by $208,000 and the operating deficit has 
deteriorated by $158,000. 
Additional financing in the amount of $132,000 has been provided by Provincial Métis 
Holdco Inc. 
Significant legal expenses in the amount of $129,000 have been incurred largely as a result 
if the governance issues described above. 
The Métis Nation has nominal third party sources of revenue other than Federal and 
Provincial agencies which may be unable or unwilling to provide future funding due to 
funding cutbacks and concern over the political instability of the Métis Nation. 
In situations where doubt exists about an entity's ability to continue without significant 
changes in its operation, generally accepted accounting principies require us to disclose this 
circumstance to the readers of the financial statements. 
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The Métis Nation has outstanding $351,000 (2013-$660,000) of accounts receivable, the 
majority of which are from federal funding agencies. Shortly after the March 31, 2013 fiscal 
year end, a meeting was held with federal funders and all arrears outstanding form prior 
years were received. Of the March 31, 2014 accounts receivable of $313,000 were from 
funding agencies of which $13,000 related to the prior year and the remainder related to the 
current fiscal year. 
GST returns are b 

KPMG confirmed the majority of revenues and accounts receivable with funding agencies. 
KPMG aiso calculated the appropriate amounts of deferred revenue by looking at the 
funding amounts received and related expenditures incurred. 
These amounts are disciosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Amounts due to Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. ("PMHC”) total $282,052 (2013 $150,000) and 
include $150,000 provided as financing for a past Métis Nation election and $132,052 of 
expenses related to Powley Component C program expenses (Deloitte Report). As these 
expenses were disputed by members of the Provincial Métis Councii the amounts were 
paid by PMHC. 

KFMG;'i=.¢."???fie_fif$' fé9.af.'d'5fi’9 5fn':1.’fié.-8iid.'ii~ 
' 

. . 

" ‘ 

The inter party balances are also recorded on the PMHC financial statements. 
These amounts are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Accounts payable are recorded as incurred and when the Métis nation has a constructive 
obligation to incur expenditures pursuant to the terms of funding agreements. 
Amounts accrued pursuant to these constructive obligations are $331,243 at March 31, 
2014 and $748,510 at March 31, 2013 

r§9§??.!iii9:'§?*é¢t §fi‘Tfh’§"?.1!§it‘ 

KPMG examined accounts payable listings for accounts pa\/ablle and agreed a sample of 
amounts to invoices. 

For amounts accrued KPMG reviewed the project budgets and the nature of amounts 
accrued based on outstanding tasks. 

These amounts are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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~ For the year endedDecem , 0 P 
$21,000 compared to $26,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

o Contributing to this excess at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were the following: 
o Rental revenue of $268,000 in 2013 compared to $248,000 in 2013 (MNS rental 

revenue of $247,000 in 2013 and $181,000 in 2012 are included in this total). 
on Rental expense of $157,000 in 2013 compared to $145,000 in 2012. 
o With the move to a new office location in late 2013, $19,000 in leasehoid 

improvements was Encurred. The leasehold improvements remaining unamortized 
balance in the previous Iocation was fully amortized in 2013. The remaining 
amortization expense increased from $34,000 in 2012 to $52,000 in 2013. The new 
lease expires in September 2016. ' 

o The loan from Sask Métis Development Corporation was paid off in 2013. 
o - Amounts due from Métis Nation of $282,000 agree to amounts recorded in the Métis 

Nation financial statements. 

0 Cash balances include amounts of deposit at the Royal Bank of Canada and amounts 
held in trust with a law firm. 
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Significant qualitative aspects of accounting 
policies and practices 
Our professional standards require that we communicate our views regarding the matters below, 
which represent judgments about significant qualitative aspects of accounting policies and 
practices. Judgments about quality cannot be measured solély against standards or objective 
criteria. These judgments are inherently those of the individual making the assessment: the 
engagement partner. However, although judgments about quality are those of the engagement 
partner, the views discussed below are not contrary to positions KPMG has taken. 
3i9"m°§"1-' 

_ _ 
Significant accounting policies or practices are disclosed in Note 2 to 

a°°°""t"‘9 P°"°'°s the financial statements. There were no new significant accounting 
policies or practices were selected and applied during the year: 

Significant o Management's identification of accounting estimates: 
accounting 0 Ability to continue as a going concern 
estimates 0 Estimates of accrued liabilities under funding agreements 

o Collectibility of accounts receivable pursuant to funding 
agreements 

0 Estimated useful lives of capital assets 
Indicators of possible management bias 

0 Disclosure of estimation uncertainty in the financial statements 

C|'3fi°8' di3°'°3"'’°5 4’ The financial statements include disclosures and presentation 
and f,i"3"°i3' requirements under the relevant financial reporting framework. 
statement _ . _ . . . . 

presentation 0 Mssstatements, Including omissions, If any, related to dnsclosure or 
presentation items are in the management representation letter 
included in the Appendices. 
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Performance observations 
As part of our audit process we communicate opportunities for impfovements in financial or 
operational processers or controls should we become aware of them during our audit. During 
the course of our audits we are aware of certain matters and have discussed them with 
management and provided our recommendations. 

The foflowing is a synopsis of these performance improvement opportunities and out 
recommendations: 

o The Métis Nation is reliant on federal and provincial government sources of funding and has 
very limited revenue from other sources. These types of funding are subject to uncertainty 
as t6 the availability and level of fu'nds accessible. The Métis Naiion has to submit work 
plans in order to access these funding sources and amounts received are subject to 
holdbacks and final approval by government departments. 

0 Métis Nations has, as previously described, incurred significant operating and working 
capital deficiency. Developing nongovernmental sources of revenue or obtaining 
government funding to cover administrative or non-program activities may be crucial to the 
long-term financial votatifity of the Métis Nation. 

o The Métis Nation's ability to operate effectively and efficiently and its ability to continue as 
a going concern has been limited by the inability of the organization to obtain consensus 
and accommodation amongst management, members of the Provincial Métis Council and 
the Métis Nation Legisiative Assembly. This conflict has also resulted in unfavorable media 
reporting and may have damaged the ability of the Métis Nations to secure ongoing sources 
of funding. These disagreements have resulted in legal challenges and oversight by the 
Courts. The Métis Nation has also incurred significant legal and other expenses in relation 
to these matters. 

0 The ability of the Métis Nation to continue as a going concern is dependent upon successful 
resolution of these issues. 
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lvlisstatements 
identification of misstatements 
Misstatementsidentified during the audit have been categorized as follows: 

0 corrected misstatements 
9 uncorrected misstatements 
These corrected audit misstatements are included in the representation letter included in the 
Appendices. We did not identify any material misstatements that remain uncorrected. 
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Appendices 
Auditors’ reports and financial statements 

Independence letters 
Management representation letters 
KPMG’s Audit Quality Framework 
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Auditors’ report and financial statements 
Previously distributed by management



Independence letters 
See attached



KPMG LLP Telephone (306) 934-6200 
500475 2nd Avenue South Fax (306) 93445233 
Saskatoon Saskatchewan S7K IP4 Internet www.kpmg.ca 
Canada 

Mr. Robert Doucette 
Métis Nation — Saskatchewan Secretafiat Inc. 
231 Robin Crescent 
Saskatoon, SK S7L 6M8 

October 16, 2014 

Dear Mr. Doucctte: 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the 
Entity (and its related entities) and our firm, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. 

In determining which relationships to report, we consider relevant rules and related interpretations 
prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable legislation or regulation, covering 
such matters as: 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

o holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

9 holding a position, either directly or indivectly, that gives the right or responsibility to excl’: 
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client 

0 personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired 
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 

6 economic dependence on a client 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 

The following summaxizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related 
entities) from April 1, 2013 up to the date of our auditors‘ report: 

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited Iiabiiiw partnership and a member firm of me KPMG 
network of independent member firms nlfiliatad with KPMG International Cooperative 
(‘KPMG International”). a Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides sarvicoa to KPMG LLP.



Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
October 16, 2014 

Type of service 

0 Audit of financial statements. 
a Consultation on accounting issues 

All other 
0 Preparation of financial statements and related schedules and notes. 
o Assistance with reconciliation of accounts and completion of accounting records. 

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
e1imi1_1atc identified threats to independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. Although we 
have policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure 
that we have not audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding to the 
threats to independence listed above: 

0 We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or 
assuming responsibility for such decisions 

0 We obtained pre-approval of non—audit services and during this pre-approval process we 
discussed the nature of the engagement and other independence issues related to the services 

0 We obtained managemcnt’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work 
performed by us regarding non- audit services and we have not made any management decisions 
or assumed responsibility for such decisions ' 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 

Ealationships Safeguards 

0 Long association of senior personnel with an 0 Discuss with those charged with

~ 
assurance client governance 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
We confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity (and its related entities) within the 
relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada 
and any applicable legislation or regulation from April 1, 2013 up to the date of our auditors’ report. 

OTHER MATTERS 
This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying 
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.



~ 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 

October 16, 2014 

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as 
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third 
party or for any other purpose. 

H 

Yours ve1y truly, 

‘~/”z~:rffi~ 
Chartered Accountants 

Gordon M. Stewart, FC-A 
Audit and Business Advisory Services



/X 
KPMG LLP Telephone (306) 93443200 
Chartered Accountants Fax (306) 93445233 
500475 2nd Avenue South lnternet www.kpmg.ca 
Saskatoon Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 
Canada 

Mr. Robert Doucette 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
406 Jessop Avenue 
Saskatoon, SK S7N 2S5 

August 1, 2013 

Dear Mr. Doucette: 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the 
Entity (and its related entities) and our firm, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. 

In determining which relationships to report, we are required to consider relevant mles and related 
intexpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable legislation or 
regulation, covering such matters as:

< 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

o holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

0 holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert 
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client 

o personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired 
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 

0 economic dependence on a client 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 
The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related 
entities) from April 01, 2012 up to the date of our auditors’ report: 

KPMG LLP is 8 Canadian (united liability pammship and a member firm of the KPMG 
network ofindcpcndenl manbcr firms afflliated with KPMG Intemadonal Cooperative (“KPMG Imeman'anal"), I Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada provides sexviccs to KPMG LLP.



~ 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 

August 1, 2013 

Description of Professional Service 

Audit 
0 Audit of financial statements. 

All other
_ 

0 Preparation of financial statements and related schedules and notes.“
_ 

0 Assistance with reconciliation of accounts and completion of accounting records. 

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
eljminate identified threats to independence or to reduce them.to an acceptable level. Although we 
have policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure 
that we have not audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding to the 
threats to independence listed above: ~ 

0 We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or 
assuming responsibility for such decisions 

0 We obtained pre-approval of nomaudit services and during this pre-approval process we 
discussed the nature of the engagement and other independence issues related to the services 

c We obtained management’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work 
performed by us regarding non-audit services and we have not made any management decisions 
or assumed responsibility for such decisions 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 

[(:lationships Safeguards 

Io Long association of senior personnel with an 0 Discuss with those charged with 
assurance client 

' governance 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

We confirm that we are independent with respgct to the Entity (and its relafed entitigs) within the 
relevant rules and related interpretations prescnbed by the relevant professional 1?od1es and any 
applicable legislation or regulation from April 01, 2012 up to the date of our aud1tors' report. 

OTHER MATTERS 
This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those chérged with governance in carrying 
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.



mg 
Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 

August 1, 2013 

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as 
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third 
party or for any other purpose. 

Yours very truly, g/ 5 14” :”;~— 
Chartered Accountants 

Gordon M. Stewart, FCA 
Audit and Business Advisory Services 
(306) 934-6203



KPMG '-U’ Telephone (306) 93445200 
500475 2nd Avenue South Fax (306) 934-6233 
Saskatoon Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 lntemet www.kpmg.ca 
Canada 

Mr. Robert Doucette 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 
231 Robin Crescent 
Saskatoon, SK S7L 6M8 

April 17, 2014 

Dear Mr. Doucg-ztte: 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the 
Entity (and its related entities) and our film, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. 

In determining which rclationshipé to report, we consider relevant rules and related interpretations 
prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable legislation or regulation, covering 
such matters as: 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

0 holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

0 holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert 
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client 

0 personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired 
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 

0 economic dependence on a client 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related 
entities) from January 1, 2013 up to the date of our auditors’ report: 

KPMG LLP Is a Canadian limitgd liability partnership and a member firm of tha KPMG 
network 9! independent member (in-ns alfiliated with KPMG Intematéonal Cooperative 
(“KPMG lnternationnl“), 9 Swiss entity. 
KPMG Canada movides services to KPMG LLP.



~ 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 

April 17, 2014 

Type of service 

Audit 
0 Audit of the Entity’s financial statements. 

Non audit 
0 Preparation of financial statements and related notes. 

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
eliminate identified threats to independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. Although we 
have policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure 
that we have not Audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding to the 
threats to independence listed above: 

0 We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or 
assuming responsibility for such decisions 

0 We obtained pre-approval of non-audit sen/ices and during this pre—approva1 process we 
discussed the nature of the engagement and other independence issues related to the services 

0 We obtained managcment’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work 
performed by us regarding non—audit services and we have not made any management decisions 
or assumed responsibility for such decisions 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 
We are not Aware of any other relationships between our firm and the Entity (and its related entities) 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence from January 1, 2013 up to the date of 
our auditors‘ report. 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 
We confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity (and its related entities) within the 
relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada 
and any applicable legislation or regulation from January 1, 2013 up to the date of our auditors’ 
report. 

OTHER MATTERS 
This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying 
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.



mg 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 

April 17, 2014 

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as 
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third 
party or for any other purpose. 

Yours very truly, 

K/ 5 14.5” 5:» 
Chartered Accountants 

Gordon M. Stewart, FCA 
Audit and Business Advisory Services



KPMG LLP Telephone (306) 934~6200 
chartered Accountants Fax (306) 934-6233 
500-476 2nd Avenue South lnternet www.kpmg.ca 
Saskatoon Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 
Canada 

Mr. Robert Doucette 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 
406 Jessop Avenue 
Saskatoon, SK S7N 2S5 

June 4, 2013 

Dear Mr. Doucette: 

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing all relationships between the 
Entity (and its related entities) and our firm, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence. 

In detexmining which relationships to report, we are required to consider relevant rules and related 
interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any applicable legislation or 
regulation, covering such matters as: 

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement 

b) other relationships such as: 

o holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client 

0 holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exam 
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client 

0 personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, pamners or retired 
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client 

o cconomid dependence on a client 

PROVISION OF SERVICES 

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related 
entities) from Januaxy O1, 2012 up to the date of our auditors‘ report: 

Description of Professional Service 

Audit 
6 Audit of the Entity’s financial statements. 

KPMG LU‘ is I Canadian limited liability pamaship and a ‘ mm arm; KPMG ‘ ofindependcnt member firms afiiliatcd with KPMO Im a‘ 
I Coopcahv' cxma Intemational"),nSwiss entity. "M M“ ‘ 

KPMG Canada pmvids setyices to KPMG LLP.

/\



~ 
Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. 

Jun: 4, 2013 

Professional standards require that we communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to 
eliminate identified threats to independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level. Although we 
have policies and procedures to ensure that we did not provide any prohibited services and to ensure 
that we have not audited our own work, we have applied the following safeguards regarding to the 
threats to independence listed above: 

0 We instituted policies and procedures to prohibit us from making management decisions or 
assuming responsibility for such decisions 

0 We obtained pre-approval of non—audit services and during this pre-approval process we 
discussed the nature of the engagement and other independence issués related to the services 

0 We obtained management’s acknowledgement of responsibility for the results of the work 
performed by us regarding non-audit services and we have not made any management decisions 
or assumed responsibility for such decisions 

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS 
We are not aware of any other relationships between our firm and the Entity (and its related entities) 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence from January 01, 2012 up to the date of 
our auditors‘ report. 

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

We confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity (and its related entities) within the 
relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies and any 
applicable legislation or regulation from January 01, 2012 up to the date of our auditors’ report. 

OTHER MATTERS 
This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying 
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes. 

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third pafty as 
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any thxrd 
party or for any other purpose. 

Yours very truly, 

””'‘iii 
Chartered Accountants 

Gordon M. Stewart, FCA
. 

Audit and Business Advisory Servzces 
(306) 934-6203



Management representation letters 
See attached



METIS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 
231 ROBIN CRESCENT 

SASKATOON, SK S7L 6M8 

KPMG LLP 
500-475 2nd Avenue South 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 
Canada 

October 16, 2014 

Ladies and Gentlemeh: 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafler referred to as "financial statements") 
of Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. ("the Entity") as at and for the period ended March 
31, 2014. 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as 
set out in Attachment I to this letter. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

GENERAL: 

1) We have fizlfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated 
June 10, 2014, for: 

a) the préparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these 
financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant 
financial reporting framework 

b) providing you with all relevant information, such as all financial records and related data 
and complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 
minutes have not yet been prepared, of shareholders, board of directors and committees 
of the board of directors that may affect the financial statements, and access to such 
relevant information 

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material. misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
CITOI‘ 

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements
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" 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING: 

2) We have communiczucd to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or 
maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which nmnagcmcm is aware. 

FRAUD & NON~COMPLIANCE WIT!-I LAWS AND REGULATIONS: 

3) We have disclosed us you’. 

a) the results ofour asscsshxcxat of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of (‘mud 

b) all infonnmion in relation to (‘mud or suspected l'rz1ud that wc‘:1rc;1warc of and that 
affects the Entity and involves: management. employees who have significant roles in 
imcrnal control, or oxhcrs, where the fraud could have :1 mmcrial effect an the financia! 
statements 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud. a1Tccting the 
Emity’s financial stzucmcnts. communicated by cmployccs. former employees, 
regulators, or others 

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non—compliaucc with laws and 
regulations, including all aspects ofcommclunl agreements, whose effects should be k 

considered when preparing financial statements ( 

:2) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements ' 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

4) All events subsequent to the date oflhc financial stmcmcms and for which the relevant 
financial rcponing framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial sxulcmcms 
have been adjusted or disclosed. 

RELATED PARTIES: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Emity‘s rclmcd parties and all the related party 
relationships and lmnsactions / balances of which we are aware and all rclmcd party 
relationships and transactions I balances have been appropriately uccoumcd 1‘ or and disclosed 
in accordance with the relevant fimzmcinl reporting framework. 

ESTIMATES: 

6) Measurement methods and signifcmmi assumptions used by us in making accounfing 
csnmatcs, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
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NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS: 
7) We confirm that the Emily is not :1 Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any 

applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Sccuritics and Exchange 
Commission ("SEC") Issucr (as defined by the Szxrbancs-Oxlcy Act M2002). We also 
confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the ccmsolidzucd 
financial statements ofa Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer 
audited by any member ofthc KPMG organization. 

GOING CONCERN: 

S) We have provided you with all rclcvzmt information regarding all ofthc key risk factors. 
assumptions and uncertainties of which \\'c are aware that are relevant to the Emily'§ ability 
In continue as :1 going concern. 

9) Material uncertainties that [may] cast [significanl/subslrmtial] L|0Ubl on the Emit_\-"s ability to 
continue as :1 going concern are fully disclosed in the financial stmcmcms. 

.\IlSS'l'.-‘\Tl*IM ENTS: 

10) The effects oflhc uncorrected misstatements described in mmclnncnl II are imnmlcrial. both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the Fmmcial slatcmcnls us :1 whole. 

I I) We approve the corrected missuucmcms identified by you during the audit described in 
/\ltachm_cnl H. 

Yours very truly. 

~~
~ 

METIS NATION — S/\S/K\/\ HEWAN SECRETARIAT INC. 

By: Mr. Louis Gardi1{V.‘c.—lI§.“§s11rcr 

»/..;Z./ d_ 
By: Mr. Robert Douccuc. President
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Attachment I— Definitions 
MA'I‘ERMLl'I'Y ‘ 

Certain representations in this letter are dcscribcd as being limited to matters that are mmcriai. 
Missmtcmcms, including omissions, are considered to be material i!’thc_v. individually or in the 
aggregate. could reasonably be expected to influence xhc economic decisions ofusers mkcn on the 
basis of the financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding 
circumslanccs, and are :Il'f'cclcd by the size or nature of :1 misstatement. or 1| combination of both. 

FRAUD & ERROR 
Fraudulent Fmancial reporting involves inlcntionul misstnuzmcnls including omissions ofammunts 
or disclosures in finzmcial statements to deceive f'manci:xls1:ucmcm users. 

Misappropriauion ot‘nssc1sin\rol\-‘cs the theft of an cn1i1y‘s-assets. h is often accompanied by false 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal Lhc fact that the assets are missing or lmvc 
been pledged without proper mxthorizzuioxl. 

An error is am unintentional misstatement in financial slmcmcms, including the omission ofun 
amount or :1 disclosure. 

RELATED I’.-\RTIES 

In accordance with Cmmdizm generally accepted accounting principles rc-Ia/e4/parry is defined as: 

0 Related panics exist when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly. conlrol. 
joim control or significant influence: over the other. Two or more pnrlics am: related when they 
are subjcct to common control. joint control or common significam influence. Relmcd pnrlics 
also include management and immcdiznc family members. 

In accorckmcc with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles :1 rc/ulczl/)ur(_1* Irunmc-lion 
is defined as: 

o A related party transaction is a transfer ofcconomic resources or obligations between related 
parties, or the provision ofscrviccs by one puny to a related party. rcyxrdlcss ofwhcthcr any 
consideration is exchanged. The parties lo the transaction are related prior to the transaction. 
When the relationship arises as a result oflhc transaction. the lrzmsuclion is not one between 
related panics.
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To Inverse on menus: Il.'\'.X cam-:1 
mcematnu AP 

11. mama: Acoou.-us Row»-we 004303-0203 '._?92 93 
u amrgou Dean.-ma R:-uonuo zxxzovoozm I 922 86 

To n.-:£.:s::!/ oflu-1 cr'¢:ve:: 
re.cn-.u~ and n::o.m¢s vezou uaeo Ic: P:~.«-.0; ccr-M.-ttn:-en . l.‘ulx:Mc*.'I-3" P:ash Me‘ n; 
F'u:,c:'. lat I.n.:n::.v axaitmcsl 2‘-((.'£'.\.'uL1’.'-‘J1 p_u::'.cs 

‘.5 mm-32.: Aer.-reed Lxhtfixflei - 7312'!-X $206900)? 1 7:5 8‘. 
5 2313117634 ocnnu.-a Ro~.¢-me 0‘)-2070-0033 X 745 aa

. 

‘.5 M15014 Furcx.-mg Fopcrm .52-m:;‘.‘J‘.«Jt'XJ 17:6 5: 
5 3.111701: Aa-nnsvatm no 42.5-:95-0:07: 1,745 31 

To a:m.c lav Cum 3: Ccr‘.".e:: -was 
1:: Anangnnl mat’: wr:'.:r..::cd 0%! I: the and of in: 16:3! year 

-.6 m1rsm.: ;-u.-mn::a'.on- Ccmpw.-rs 00-1302-cmo :20 3 H 16 939 23 
'. 2r31r.vo1..- r\CC_“|".L€Ml.‘13 Copnam.-cn GO-13:0-C000 1:29 3 11 10 CC’: 52 
16 3f.!1f20H Acmnzufialcd Coancmton 00-13100./50 I30 3 11 
I5 1131120!-l Tnnmln - Computer; 024307-0000 120 3 H 14.51: 40 
15 ‘.!fJ1:?0!-I Ynp.1r'.1.u- Ac: Oopnouuotu 32-I310-0000 I20 3 I I 10.C59 52 
'. M10011 muual - Conxggmavs Ia-I392-OCOO I20 3 H 2,12»! 83 

To Iccmswy wmpuxor cmsusnnutut 
from dsmm-nuoo woman“. In ndnnmuntotl 

605,558.16 606550.16 

—‘\\ 

Nu! income (Lou) ($9,113.11 ) ‘ 

/. 
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Mélls Nzition - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. G4 
nu: March 31, 2014 Plopamd by Sn Pmmod by HL Pvoparcd by 
slflcnllon entries ca 2514.65-os 
I013-O4-O1 To 2014-03-31 Reviewed by RF/lowed by Post signal! Post slgnofl 

65 20:4.-.043: 

Number Data Name Account No Roforunco Annolullon Debit cmm Rocurroncn Mlsslammonl 

12 2014-03-31 Suidae Prevcn:bn~ Cooluinalar 27-5071-0000 I90. I 101 1,526.54 
12 20M—OJ-31 S-.éo'dc Pm-voohon - Irznm 27-5350-D000 I90 I 10! .:_660 25 
12 20!-1-03-31 Sdddo Fmvcn:-an --Prcimzcral Foes 27-5-H0-0300 I50 I 101 1.77! 97 
‘.2 :-m~m3.:u Smciea Pu:'.1:n'.-on -«‘¢::-mm.-:man 276495-ooco 190. not 215 66 
\2 2014-03-31 Smsdo P-'wcn:::»n ~Ccrnnuna:.1:v:‘;n‘Gx:se:ni.nal 27-5512-000.’) 190 I 101 T.3£2.0-S 

12 20!-1-O3-3! Health Deszamnonl - Dwroctar 5.1‘-iI?'y 3960450000 1 I 101 1,526.5: 
12 2014-03-31 Health Depanm-cm - ‘hm-cl Eapcnso 39-53600000 190. M01 -:,6w.25 
1? 20!-L03-31 Pmlcssicnn! Fcua 39-5-'.10~0000 190 1 101 1,771.97 
12 2014-03-31 vudoo :9-5432-0000 mu. 1.101 5,427.50 
12 201403-31 Pvinllng and Pl\ou>con)1’ng 30-54050000 190. 1.101 11754.54 
(2 2014-03-31 Homzh Dcparuncnt - hdnwmatmhon Fco 39-5-195-0000 - 190. M01 215 66 

To rc-d:.\s::fy '4u<rJ!.' on-vcnzxan 
czsenscs tr-an Mcn‘m,D.rr:c::ar Programme 

‘-3 2314-03-3‘. Defeat: Re-venue 00-20700000 1543 1 101 31079 18 
13 20:-2-03-31 Prcs-naax Funsng v l.'.:us::~, ol um:-1: 27-£0151’.-000 190 1 :01 E:.335.fl2 

13 2014-03-31 Pm-meal Fummg - |.!r.-::ry ol Hcrvtfl 27—:OJ5~0'Jlr0 I90 1 10! 5 623 70 
I3 20!-1-O3-31 Pmvinaal Funcma - Ha.-um 39-10350000 190 I 101 9.333 12 
I3 20!-1-03-31 Provincial Fundmg - Hun-‘m 30-10350000 190. 1.101 37.455 68 

Ta rodnssily Mimstry cl He.-um 
lundung relating to tmcnda) ptuvcnliim programme oxpcnt.-A (.1!-.0 sou I90 0 -I) 

62.96536 62363.96 

m-1Incomc(Loss) (\.':'J.71J.77] 
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Métis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 65 
Year End: Match 31. 2014 Propavod by SR Flcpnrcd by HL Prepared WTM7 Propanfil 5y—"' ,- 
Engagemnnl ptopcnlns on 201:.-on-oz.

( Data: 2013-04-01 To 2014-0341 fifilcwcu by Ifizvlcwcd By Post slnnoll Post signal! 
55 7014.10-{:1 

Number Dalo Name Account No Raluronco Annotation Debit credit Rucummco Mlsualerncnl 

I 201-L03-3| Prepaid Expense: 0045000-D000 120. 3. I2 \1.10D.61 
1 2014-03-31 IT Requirnnwnlufiquipnmnl 33-EH20-0000 120. 3. I2 1,004.&5 
I 2014-05-31 /xavanecn Data Sutcms 336-€JI»OO0o ‘I20 1 I2 10,158.06 

To ward me;-Aid cxpomo Ia 
uspcnsns ‘ ‘ 

, mam-.rJl.‘arm I. 2014 :3 Feb 26. 2015 

11.1603! 11.160.$i 

Mel Income (Loss) (I-18,563.20) 
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F%ETUFii\; TQ KPMG 
;\/H"€'I'lS NATION - SASKATCHEWAN SECRE'I'ARlz\T INC. 

406 JESSOP AVENUE 
S/\SK/\'l'OON. SK S7.\' 255 

KPMG LLP 
C harlcred .‘\CCOunI'.\nlS 
500-475 End Avenue South 
Saskatoon, Saskzuchcwzun S7K IPA 
Canada 

August 0!. 2013 

Ladies and Gcmlcmcn: 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding [hm your audits were for the purpose 
ofexprcssing an opinion on the finxmcizxl smtcmcnls (hcrcinuflcr rcl'crrcd lo as “fnzmcial 
statements") of Mélis Nation - Snskmchcxx-an Secretariat Inc. ("the Emily"). which comprise the 
stmemcms of financial position as at March 3 l. 2013. .\'larch 3!. 2012 and April 01. 20! I. the 
statements of opcralions. changes in net assets and cash flmvs For the years ended March 3|. 2013 
und.March 3 I. 20|’.’.. and notes, comprising a summary ofsigllificnnt accounting policies and other 
cxplzxxaaiony inf‘orn1:uion. These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian 
accounting standards For not-for-pmft organizations. 

We confirm that lhc representations we make in this Iellcr are in accordance with l|1cdcl'IniIions :15 
5:21 om in Attachment I to this letter. 

We confirm that. 10 the best ofour knowledge and belief. having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose ofnppmprimcly informing ourselves: 

‘GENERAL: 

I) We have fulfilled our responsibilities. as set out in the terms oflhc cngagcmcn! letter dated 
May 7. 2013. for: 

:1) the preparation and fair presentation ofthc financial statements and believe that these 
financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance wixh the relevant 
financial reporting franucwork 

b) providing you with all rclcvzml informzuion. such as all Fmnncial records and related data 
and complete minutes of meetings. or summaries oI‘m:lions of recent meetings for which 
minutes have not yet been prepared. ofshareholdcrs. board of directors and committees 
ofthc board ofdircctors that may mTccl the fimmcial statements. and access to such 
rclcvanl inibrnmlion 

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the prcparalion 
ol‘ 

Fmancizll statements that are Free from material missmtcmem. whether due to fraud or 
Cl‘l‘0l'
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(I) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the uccouming records and are 
reflected in the financial stzucmcms 

INTERNAL CON'I'R()L OVER FINANCIAL REPOR'I‘I1\‘G: 

2) We have conmmnicmcd to you all clcfciencies in the design and implemcmation or 
maimcnzmcc of imcmal control over Fmzmcial reporting of which nmnagemem is aware. 

FRAUD & 1\'0N-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS: 
' 

3) We have disclosed to you: 

a) the results ofour usscssmcm of the risk that the financial statements may be maucriaxlly 
misstated as :1 result of frzuui 

b) all information in rclmion to fmud or suspected fraud than we are aware ofund that 
affects the Entity and in\'0|\'cs: mmmgemcnt. employees who have significnm roles in 
internal control. or others. where the fraud could have a material effect on the fmnnciul 
slmcmcms 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected Fraud, affecting the 
Enlily’s fimmcial suucmcnts. communicated by employees. former employees. 
regulators. or others . 

d) all known instances ol‘nun-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. inchxding nil aspects ofcontraclual ugrecmcnls. whose effects should be 
considered when preparing Fmmcial statements 

c) all known actual or possilflc litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the Financial statements 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

4) All cvcms subsequent to the date oflhc financial statements and for which the relevant 
financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements 
have been adjusted or disclosccl. 

REL.»\'l‘ED PARTIES: 

‘II §/ We have disclosed to you the identity of the Emity‘s related parties and all the related party 
rclationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and 
transactions have been alppropriulciy accounted for and disclosed in accordzmcc with the 
relevant Fmancial reporting frmncwork. 

EST] MATES: 

6) Measurement methods and sig.nil':c;mt assumptions used by us in making accounling 
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonmblc. 

/‘\_
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NON-SEC RIZGISTR.-'U\"I‘S OR x\’ON~REPORTING ISSUERS: 
7) We confirm that the Emily is not a Canadian reporting issuer (us defined undc1'an_\' 

applicable Canadian securities act) and is not :1 United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC“) lssuer(:1s defined by the Sarbancs-Oxlcy Act oI'2002). We also 
confirm that the financial statements ofthc Entity will not be included in the consolidated 
Fnancial statements ot’:1C:uuxdian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer 
nudilcd by any member ofthc KPMG organization. 

MISS'I‘ATICT\'IENTS: 

S) The cITccls ofthc uncorrected misstatcmcnls described in Atlztclmmnt H are imn1atcrial. both 
' 

individually and in the aggregate. to the financial s(z1lcn1cms as :1 whole. ' 

9) We approve the corrcclc(| misslnlcmcnls idemifcd by you during the audit described in 
Attachment ll. 

()'l'H ER: 

I0) GOh\'G CONCERN: 

The Fnancial statements disclose all oflhc matters of which we are aware that are relevant to 
the Enli1_\"s ability to continue as 21 going conccm. including significant conditions and 
events. We confirm that we have disclosed to you our plans for Future action rclcvam to the 
I-Inlil_v's ability to cmuinuc as :1 going concern. 

Yours very truly. 

:\'!!:'I'lS N/\'I'ION — S §~A'I'Cl-lE\\’/\N Sl3.CRE'I'ARU\'l' INC‘. 

By: Mr. Louis C‘ m -r. 'I'rcasm'cr M 9@ 
By: Mr. Robert Douccuc. Prcsidcm
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Attaclnncnl 1- Definitions 

MATERIALITY 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited lo nmucrs that are unmcrial. 
:\'1isstzuemcms. including omissions. are considered to be material if‘thc_v. individually or in the 
aggregate. could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis ofthc Fmmcial statements. Judgnuenls about mmcrinlil_v are made in light ofsurrounding 
circumstances. and are affcclml by the size or nature ofu misslzucmcm. or a combination ofbmh. 

FRAUD & ERROR 
l-'r:1udulen( financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions ofaunoums 
or disclosures in financial statements to .dcccive financial smlumcnt usqrs. 

Misapproprimion of assets invoivcs the theft of an emi1y’s assets. [1 is often accompanied by false 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the lhcl that the nsscts are missing or have 
been pledged without proper nuthori‘/.zuim1. 

An error is an unintentional misslntcmcm in 1'mancia)s1zncn1en1s. inciuding the omission ohm 
amount or a disclosure. 

RE LATEI) PARTIES 

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles refuted/mrry is defined as: 

o Related parties exist when um: party has the ability to exercise. directly or indirectly. control. 
joint control or significam influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they 
are subject to common conlrol.joinl control or common signifcanl influence. Related panics 
also include management and immediate fmnily members. 

in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting. principles :3 11'/uled puI‘I_I' II'<III.\‘u«.‘Iiun 
is defined as: 

o A related party lransaclion is :1 lrzxnsfcr ofcconomic resources or obligations between rclalcd 
parties. or the provision of services by one party to :1 related pzu'l_\'. regardless of‘\\«'hc1hcr any 
consideration is exchanged. The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction, 
When the relationship arises as a result of the transaction. the transaction is not one between 
rclzucd panics.
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"‘tis Nation - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. 
(3.3 7 End: Maw” 31. 2013 rcpare y usting Journal Entries cu 5/14/2013 ".3: 41112012 To 313112013 ‘Rivxcwed by Rcvmwud by Posi §ignoH Post slgnoif 

ID 7121112013 

Numb" DWI NIMO ACCOUM N0 Reference Annotation Debit Credit Rocurrcnce 
2 3/31/2013 GST Racolvame 0042100000 120 3 Id 
2 3/33/2013 AdmInl8lmhon- Compulots oo-I302-0000 120. 3. 1-1 
2 30112013 Tllpmtilic - Computers 02-13020000 120 3 14 4,249 08 2 3/31/2013 v.'eus»xe Main1c-nancL- 02-5401-0000 120. 3 14 4.21.335 2 '.!I3 V2013 Bs|alorat:Compu!c a IE-13020000 120 3 14 2.124 83 2 3/31/2013 B-lzuerzzh Server I8-5402-0000 $20 1 H 2.12.: 83 2 3/33/2013 Pa.u1cyNReg-SW-Comnmors 33-1302-0000 I20 3. M 19,582.05 2 .'!IJ!l2013 Tecll Support 33-5510-0000 120.3. M 19,582.05 2 3/31/2013 Ganoaiogscm-Conlnuxm 35-1302-0000 I20 3 V. 13.207 55 
2 30112013 GenoaloqimlsHesxoncmweusxxe 3554010000 t20.3 I4 9377.35 2 zvmzoss Gene:|‘c<_1:ca)8 Hmonmi - server 35-5402-0900 120 3 1.-. 3.330 -.9 

To apdahze me nan cornpuztcrs 
b<mgnl_|o( me MRS mu 

3 313112013 Gcnealoglcahccmpuler 35.13o2.oaoa 120 3 15 1212520 3 301/2013 Gonualoq-r.1! & Hssxoncal ~ Equlpll‘-¢-'\l 3554200000 120 3 :5 9553 59 3 3111/2013 Furnxxum.-’:'c:u-pmcnx 335425-0030 120 3 15 2.75:, 51 

10 row.-Isa me cqunpmcul mm 
turmlum mm was oxpcnztcd and mpnlaluza me nucmmm scanner under compuicrs 

5 3591/2013 GST Reccovawu DO-1210-0000 24 O5 
5 3/31/2013 /~wounIP.1ynble O0~20504>O00 1,009 5.: 5 3/31/2013 Admunrslxnbon O2-5495-0000 21.: 27 
5 3/31/2013 Adrmmsumion 02-5-‘~95-0000 234 27 
5 3/31/20’3 /Wnlnlslmnuu 34-5495-0000 278 62 5 JIIHIZOIJ nmninlxlmuon 16-5495-0000 278 63 

5‘-oposod by chant 

6 313112013 Accumulated Depndnlmn 00-13100000 I20. 3. H ‘ 1,006.36 
6 3/31/2013 Delmwd Gmnls (or Cnpd-‘I! Assent DO-20750000 I20. 3 H 38,548.55 
6 313112013 Amorliznuon Expcnso 006505-0000 120 3 11 1,006.36 
6 3I31I2013 Amomznbon Expense 00-5505-0309 I20 3 11 15875 
6 3/31/2013 Pav/Icy-fxuzumulnuv Lropnoauon 0143100000 120 3 11 20.37437 
E 3mr2o13 Foucrulfiovcrnmcnl - OF! Oi-‘O00-0000 I20 3. H 20,226.55 
6 am/2013 Amom.-anon 016505-0000 I20 3 H 20.374 37 
8 313112013 Tnp.1mlvo- Arc. Ocpnuzmon 02-I310-0000 I20 3. 11 495.22 
6 3/31/208 Atmmzauon D2-5505-0000 120 3 H 495 22 
E 3'3!/2013 OTC-Accumulated Dc-;>u-canon 1143100000 120 3 11 25519 
5 3/31/2013 Amomzahon expense 11-5505-0000 I20 3 H 25519 
6 1'31I2013 Youth Ccunc!-;'»<n.ImuI:.:-:u Ocprccm-an I3-‘-3'-0-0000 $20 3 H 158 75 
5 3131,2013 Hqauh ./‘cc. Dc.-pncazxon 154310-0000 1211 3 H 822 74 
6 3I3lI20t3 Hoaun Dimctor Inmahs-c - /\mor|izalxon X5-5505-000-5 I20 3 I I 822 74 
6 3/33/2013 Genon!oguc.1I.Aac.Ocp:cc:.1';ou 35-1310-0000 120 3 H 18.32199 
5 3/3;/2013 Gcne:1!og:.2l&H(s1On¢:‘)L - 354000-0303 I20 3. H 18321 99 
5 333112013 Genealogical. /-momzotmn 355505-0000 1211 3 H 15 1-21 99 

To record amanuabon L-xpansc per 
caputnl asset woxhng paper 

'1‘ 1031/2013 Dolr.-(red Grams tot Cnpxtal AS5025 00-207540000 120 3 H I-9.264.-‘.6 
7 3,3‘f2m3 pangs . fqgeml 024-093-0093 120 3 I 1 ZJZ-1 B3 
7 JCHIZOI3 Ptcv\ncaIFund:ng-FN!.1R 024030-0500 I20 3 H 2.12.: 83 
7 33113913 Fundg. Federal 33-‘.000-0000 120 3 N 19,582.05 
7 3I31!20\3 Gcnentogicnla Hnslonml. . 35--‘-000-0000 120. 3. N 25.43215 

To moon] giants lo! capaml 
am.-ls puvdwsod lot Inn Genealogical program 

3 3/31/2013 Accounts Rococvabzo 00-1200-0000 I90. 3.L102 02.95fi.9O 
a 3I3H2013 Nlowanco lor doumml account 0042010000 190- 3-U02 "-5“r’°~°° 
8 313112013 Accounl Payable 00-205043000 190' 3«‘:‘°2 92-9“6'9° 
3 301/2013 Recovery 0! huldbackslccchmblc K00-50000000 190. 3.1.102 H.500.0D 

To chm-na: the WAC |'t‘C¢"V09‘0 ' 

and corrcspcrxcino payable srnco those ainoums have been no! sowed subsequent lo year 
end KPMG noted that INAC and MMS vemndied lhe amounts owing as 
pan 0! mo nel semcment and excluded this amount from meir 
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Métis Naiion - Saskatchewan Secretariat Inc. (33.1
_ 

Year End: Match 31. 2013
‘ 

Adjusting Jaumal Entries cn 6/24/2013 
Date: 4I1/2012 To 3I31I2013 Rowowod by Reviewed by Fosfsxgnoff T’os{ sngnof! ‘ 

TD 7115120 1 1
‘ 

Number Date Name Account No Reference Annotation Debit credit Recurrence 

payment. 

9 3/31/2013 Accrued Liabimies - 2012/13 O0-201370000 210. 3,-4.2 4,718.27 
9 3/31/2013 /-mm Senna: 005390-0000 210. 3.4.2 4,718 27 

Aocruo :1udx\ (ea (0 be consistent 
wom engagamenl M.-Her. 

3F.£II2Dl3 Awounls Rccoivabu: D0-1200-0000 190. 3.1.100 
3I31/2013 I-cwunls Rcocivabze 00-1200-0030 150. 3.1.100 
381/2013 lucccunls Receivnbic O0-1200-0000 190. 3.1.100 
3f3ll2013 Dofmmd Revenue D0-2070-0000 150. 3.1.100 38,079.38 
3F.|II2O l3 Delexrcd Revenue OD-2070-0000 190. 3.1.100 33.07036 
3131:7013 Defcm.-d Revenue 002070-0000 190. 3.1.100 30303.33 
3/31/2013 Delened Revenue O0-2070-0000 190. 341.100 18.76610 
3131/2013 Deferred Revenue 00-207041000 190. 3.1.100 2,468 75 
3/31I2o13 Dclcnud Revenue 00-2070-0000 190. 3.1.100 ):i,551.G3 
3/31/2013 Delermd Revenue 002070-0000 190. 3.1.100 
313112013 Funds - Federal O2-!.OO0»0O0O 190. 3.1.100 
3/31/2013 Provincia! Fundmg - FN!-AR O2--1030-0000 190. 3.1.100 
3/31/2013 Environmcnlcannda Fundmg O6-400541000 190. 3.1.100 13,551 I33 
3131/2013 Green Llgm Program - Saskatoon Health Region I2-4065-D000 190. 3.1.100 2,448.75 
3/31/2013 Funding - Mlnislry 0! Education M-4037-0000 I90. 3.1.100 31070.96 
3/31/2013 Provincial Funding - FNMR 19-40300000 190. 3.1.100 30,303.33 
3/31/2013 Provindnl Funding - Henllh 2B~-1085-0000 100. 3.|.100 38.071138 
3I3 1/2013 -Funding Fadamh 28-4000-0000 190. 3.1.100 
331/2013 Plovindm Funding - Ministry of Social Service 30-4031-0000 190. 3.1.100 18,766.70 
am/201:: Funds - Federal 33-4000-0000 I90. 3.1.100 

To recon! dcttmcd tuvonuc {or ‘ 

unspent lundmg.
< 

13 3I31I20I3 Funding Repayments O0-571)!)-0000 410. 3.1.5 5,000.00
‘ 

13 3131/2013 Loan Receivable BTU Land Mg! Inc. D4-1220-0000 410. 3.1.5 5,000.00 

To reverse amount payable lo Bach ‘ 

to enlome as :1 result of running da-.-mocks related In Back to Dniocne nciivmes. 

432.0416! -132,042.63 

Net Income (Loss) (135.73-t.s1 )



RETURN TO KPMG 
PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO mc. 

23: ROBIN cmsscsm 
SASKATOON, s1< s71, ems 

KPMG LLP 
S00-475 2nd Avenue South 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan S7K 1P4 
Canada 

Apri|“l7. 2014 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are writing at your request to confirm our undctstandinglthat your audit was for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hcrcinaflcr tcfcrrcd to as "financial statements") 
of Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. ("the Entity") as at and for the period ended December 3 I , 2013. 

We confinn that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as 
set out in Arttachmentl to this letter. 

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the pulposc of appropriately infonning ourselves: 

GENERAL: 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the toms of the engagement letter dated , 

for:
' 

a) the prepamion and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these 
financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant 
financial reporting framework 

b) providing you with all relevant information, such as all financial records and related data 
and complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 
minutes have not yet been prepared, of shareholders, board of directors and committees 
of the board of directors that may afiect the financial statements, and access to such 
relevant information 

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
CITOF 

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting necords and are 
feflectcd in the financial statements
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING: 
2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or 

mnintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which management is aware. 

FRAUD & NON-COMPUANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATHONS: 
3) We have disclosed :6 you: 

3) 

b) 

e) 

the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud 

all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that 
affects the Entity and involves: management, employees who have significant roles in 
internal control, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements ' ' 

all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud. affecting the 
Emity's financial statements, communicated by employees, former employees, 
regulators, or others

' 

all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and 
regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be 
considered when preparing financial statements 

/3 

all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant
I 

financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements 
have been adjusted or disclosed. 

RELATED PARTIES: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and 
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 
relevant financial reporting framework. 

ESTIMATES: 

6) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured ‘at fair value, are ‘reasonable.
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NON-SEC REGHSTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING HSSUIERS: 
7) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any 

applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of 2002). We also 
confixm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the consolidated 
financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC lssucr 
audited by any member of the KPMG organization. 

B/HSSTATEMENTS: 

8) We approve the corrected misstatements identified by you during the audit described in 
Attachment H. ‘ ' 

Yours very truly. 

PROVINCIAL M1’-ms HOLDCO INC. 

24—vQ,{%— 
Biy: Mr. Robert Doucettc, Chairman 

By: Mr. Louis Gardiner, Treasurer
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Attachment 1! - Definitions 
MATEREALHTY 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Misstatemcuts, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the 
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding 
circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. 

FRAUD & ERROR 
Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts 
or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. . 

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity's assets. It is ofien accompanied by false 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have 
been pledged without proper authorization. 

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an 
amount or a disclosure. 

RELATED PARTIES 
In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles related party is defined as: 

0 when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, control, joint control or 
significant influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to 
common control, joint control or common significant influence. RcIa‘tcd parties also include 
management and immediate family members. 

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles a related party transaction 
is defined as: 

o a transfer of economic resources or obligations between related parties, or the provision of 
services by one party to a related party. regardless of whether any considemtion is exchanged. 
The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction. When the relationship arises as 
a result of the transaction, the transaction is not one between related panics.
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Attachment ll 

Provincial Métio Holden Inc. 53 
End: DUWIIIBOV 3’. 2913 Ffipum E7 Pg-upaffl B; ' qv y 
rm Journal Enum 
am-o1.o1 To 2013.124: FSEGEFSH“ an 

ID 2o1.z4>.:.n as 2014-06-22 

Number Date Name Amount No Rolonmeo knnotauon om: cmm Roenmnco Mlsstalemont 

1 2013-12-31 «Moots-Leasehold |llIfi9V0lV¢nb- 1250 3. 2. 3 15.61150 
1 2013-12-01 -Msahrtoucmld Imalvvomonw 1250 3. 2. J 129,933.18 
1 2013-1201 Mcumulam Oowodoflon 1310 3. 2. 3 1.551 .1: 
1 2013-1261 Accumulated Oopmdwon 1310 3. 2. 19 79.08918 
1 20134201 Budding Rnpoh and Malmonnneo 5000 3. 2. 3 1,563.50 
1 20134241 Elowloal 5060 3. 2. 3 11050.00 
1 2M3-12-3! Auuduflonouaonso 5415 1. z 10 50.04312 
1 2013-12-31 Mnnlzauonoxaomo 5415 3. 2. J 1.51.13 

70 My omorun and doneogruo 
mpvwiomtoasanoaaunpvvvcmauummeaaoaieowaxxguaazarooaauw 

_.nn~ 
° _, ' A an .-.....' * ' T in no 

amen: yeai. 

2 
' 

2013-1241 Pavpaid Expense: M00 3. 2. I 14.58030 
2 2013-12-31 Ofllco Red 5460 3. 2. 1 $4,580.30 

To Incognito who expense not 
won Imonawy hauled In mun owemcs at you «no. 

3 2013-12-31 Awued lnlatosl Pwnblt 2070 3. 2. 2 38.90 
3 2013-12¢! l.km‘li!y$MEOCOLaan Panda 2093 J. 2. 2 8.46127 
3 zou)-12-31 Loan Payment $100 3. 2. 2 8.65100 
3 2013-12-31 Moms! Paymanl - SMEDCO 5200 3. 2. 2 14.83 

To menu! the repayment a! mo 
SMEDCO loan. 

4 2013-12-31 mama Mm Notion socmmm 1220 2. a. 4 a5.!87.24 . 2013-12-31 Loan! sowico 5400 2. 4. 4 45.18124 

To account tor Iona! orpenua paid 
on 
bohaflo! MN-S andronodthemnonnlnonaso Inthadualromuntlsmdon - 

Sulmlchowan Soaouuh! account. 

5 2013-azouceuuuu Payuua 2060 2. 4. 4 10300.00 

5 2013-12-3: Audit scum 5390 2- 4- 6 ‘°.3°°~°° 

To ocauo lcrlho man! 2013 Ma too 
s 101342;: TM: Moan ‘OW 320- 7- 2 3-W9‘ 
5 zomzm om lnoumo 4060 720- 1 2 315°” 

To coccnwo mo ewe held in we 
must aeaounua mo 1'5 519 fvcclwud 

231.073-20 235.3792! 

Hal Inoomo (Lou) IMO!-D9 

mo 1



PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO INC. RETURN TO KPMG ( 406 JESSOP AVENUE 
SASKATOON, SK S7N 2S5 

KPMG LLP 
Chzmcrcd Accountants 
500-475 2nd Avenue South 
Saskatoon. Saskzuchcwnn S7K 1P4 
Canada 

June -1. 2013' 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding thzu your audits were for me purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the financial smlemems (hereinafter referred to as "finnncint 
st:ucmcnL;“) of‘Provim:izn! Métis Holdco Inc. ("the Entity"). which comprise the statements of 
financial position as at Duccmbcr 31, ‘.2012, December 31, 2011 and January 01, 20! l. the 
smwmcms ofopcralions, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years ended December 3 I . 

2012 and December 3|. 20! I. and notes, comprising a summary ofsignificant accounting policies 
and other explanatory in Fnrmmion. These financial slmcmcms were prepared in accordance with 
Canadian nccouming smndnrds for not-for-profit organizations. ( 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in uccordmwc with the dcfmitions as 
set out in Attncluucnt I to this lcucr. 

We confirm (hm. K0 the best ofour knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary For the purpose ofupproprialcly informing ourselves: 

GENERAL: 

I) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set OUI in [he terms ofxhc engagement lcucr dated 
March I8. 2013, For: 

:1) the preparation and fair prcscmmion ofthc financial stalcmcnus and believe that those 
financial stmcnncms have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the rah.-vzuu 
Fnunciail reporting framework 

b) providing you with all relevant information, such as all financizxlmccords and related data 
and complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 
minutes have not yet been prepared. of shareholders, board of directors and committees 
of the board ofdircclors that may affect the financial statements, and access to such 
relevant int'ormznion 

c) such internal control as management determined is necessary (0 enable lhc preparation of 
hnnncml statements that are free from material misstatcnmnt. whether due to fraud or 
error
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d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in HM: accounting records and are 
reflcctccl in the Fmnncia! slutcmcms 

INTERI\'AL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REl’OR'l‘!NG: 
2) We have communicmctd to you all deficiencies in the design and implcmcnuuion or 

znainlcnnncc of inlcmal control over financial reporting of which management is aware. 

FRAUD 8: NON-CO:\lI’l.l.-\:\'CE WITH LAWS .-\:'\"l) IZEGUIATIONS: 
3) We have disclosed to you: 

a) the results nf'our:1sscssmcm ofzhc risk that the l'muncial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of‘ Fraud 

b) all infonnalion in relation to (‘mud or suspected fraud that we are aware ofand that 
affects the Entity and involves: mzmagcmcm. employees who have significant roles in 
internal control, or others. where the fraud could have :1 material cfibcz on the finzmcial 
statements 

c) all intbrxnzuion in relation to allegations of fraud. or suspected fraud, :\lTcc1ing._: the 
Emity‘s financial suncmcms. conmluniczucd by employees. f'ormcrcmp!oycc.<:, 
regulators. or others ‘ 

d) all known in.~:(zmccs ofnomcomplinncc or suspcclcd nomcompliancc with Iaws and 
regulations. including all aspects ofconlmclual agreements, whose effects should be 
considered when preparing financial slzucmcms 

c) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose cfTects should be considered 
when preparing the financial stzucmems 

SUBSEQUENT Ii\’l".NTS: 

4) All events subsequent to the date ofthc fimmcial .s'uucn1cms and for which the relevant 
financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial smlcmcms 
have been adjusted or disclosed. 

RELATED PART! ES: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity ofthc Emiuy‘s rclmcd parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and 
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 
relevant financial reporting framework. 

ESTINLXTES: 

6) Measurement methods and significant nssumptions used by us in making accounting 
estimates. including those measured at Fair value, am: rcnsonzxblc.
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NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPOR'l‘lNG ISSUERS: 
7) We confinn that the Entity is not :1 Canadian reporting issuer (us defined under any 

applicable Canadian securities act) and is not :1 United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (ns clcfincd by the Sarbancs-Oxlcy Act of 2002). We also 
confirm that thc fmzmciul statements of the Emily will not be included in the consolidated 
financial statements ofn Cmmdinn reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer 
audited by any member ofthe KPMG organization. 

:\1ISST.»\TEM ENTS: 

8) We approve the corrected misstmcmcms idcnliFcc| by you during the audit described in 
Auachmcnt IT.’ - - 

Yours vcry truly. 

PROVINCIAL METIS HOLDCO mc. fim——~ 
By: Mr. Robert Doucertc. Chairman 

[)4////06 
By: Ms. Sandra Lloyd. Adéounmm 

‘V//\\
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Attachment 1- Definitions 
MA'I‘ER[ALl'I'Y 

Ccrlain representations in this letter are described as being limited to mzmers that are material. 
Missmtcmcms, including omissions, are considered lo be material if they, individually or in the 
aggregate. could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the fixiancial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding 
circmnsmnccs, and are aftbctcci by the size or nature ofa missmlcmcnt, or a combination of both. 

FR.-\UD & ERROR 
Fraudufcnl financial reporting involvcs i_ntcntion:1l misstatements including omissions ofnmoums 
or disclusurcs in (‘m-.mcinl statements to.<lcccivc fiuzmciul statement users. 

x\IliS‘dppr0])TiZ\liDn of assets involves the theft of an cnlily’s'.\ssc1s. It is often uccompzmicd by faisc 
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the filct that the assets are missing or have 
been pledged Without propcr authorization. 

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements. including the omission of an 
amount or a disclosure. 

RELATED PARTIES 
In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accouming principles related purI_\' is defined as: 

o when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, control, joint conlrol or 
significant influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to 
common control, join! control or common significant influence. Related panics also include 
management and immediate family mcmhcrs. 

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 2: related parry transaction 
is defined as: 

o a transfer ofcconomic resources ‘or obligations between related parties, or the provision of 
services by one party to :1 rclaxcd parry, regardless of whether any consideradon is exchanged. 
The parties to {he transaction are rclamd prior to the xransaction. When the rclmionship arises as 
a result ofthc transaction, the transaction is not one between related parties.



“Provincial Méfis Holdco Inc. 
Attachment II 

G3 
Year End: December 31. 2012 wop'a'r'6u by rrepmeu ny 
Adjusting Journal Emrlos

( Date: 2012-01-01 To 2012-12-31 ROVIGWEU by IlavKwetTby j'osTsignofl Fosl sngnofk 
as 2013-05-0| 

Numbflf Date Name AOGOUM N0 Reference Annolallon Debit Credit Recurrence 

1 2012-12-31 Accounts Payable 2060 210.400 9300.00 
3 2012- 12-31 Aunt-‘I Somcos 5390 210.400 9,800.00 

To record 20l2 mum too accxual 

2 2012-12-31 lsca.:muL12od Dcprocaal-on 13\0 120 100 33.895133 
2 7012-12-31 Amomauon expanse 5-1 15 120.100 33.695 GI 

To record amcmazat.-on over 
xcasonola umpemcmenlc 

41695.61 41695.61 

Hm Income (Loss) 25,710.76 
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KPMG’s Audit Quality 
Framework 
Audit quality, and the respective roles of the auditor and 
audit committee, is fundamental to the integrity of 
financial reporting in our capital markets. 

This is why audit quality is at the core of everything we do 
at KPMG. And we believe that it is not just about reaching 
the right opinion, but how we reach that opinion. 
To help ensure that every partner and empioyee 
concentrates on the fundamental skills and behaviours 
required to deliver an appropriate and independent 
opinion, we have developed our global Audit Quality 
Framework. 

The framework comprises seven key drivers of audit 
quality. 

The seven key drivers of audit quality 

. ,-I4’ .;c_if9‘,e‘s§f ‘. 
2-, J. :43‘. .~.-.-«:.» 

Toh'e ai the top Audit quality is part 
our values and therefore non- 
negotiable 

of our engagements 

Allows the right behaviours to permeate 
across our entire organization and each

~ ~~ ‘I . ~~ . i . 

K
. 

Qommftmcntoo 
; 3 

~ - 

G-ammuom. 
E 

!Af:gor::tia¢_tlI‘<l3'ga\_:JIth 
the

~ ~~~~. 

---...§g 
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Improvement~
~~
~ ~~ ~~~ ~ ~~~ 

~~~ _ 
Clear standards and .5 

" 
’_ -robust audit tools 

-~ Pgrfén-nance of 
eI‘{e:_:tiv'o and eflicient 

‘ audits ~ , 1 

1 
5 Recmitmént, 
‘ developmentand 

technical excellence ‘ 

; 
assianmentof 

andquafiiyseivlce 1 T 8DP'°Pfl°‘°'V 
dgflvery 

‘ 

-quaflfled personnel 

Commitment to ~ ~ 

Associationwith Ethics above all 
the right entities 

and conflict-of-interest issues 
Eliminates any potential independence 

their specific skill sets 

Clear standards A solid rule book 
and robust audit . . . . . 

tools 
Rtgorous Internal DOHCIBS and guidance 
that heip ensure our work meets 
applicable professional standards, 
yegulatory requirements, and KPMG’s 
standards of quality 

Recruitment, People who add value 
devdopmem and Helps us attract and retain the best assignment of . . . 

appropriately people and reinforces the importance of 

quamed developing their talents 

p°'s°""°' Assigns Partners’ portfolios based on



Cofiimifment to 
tgchnjical

_ 

excellence and 
quality service 
delivery 

Promotes technical excellence and 
quality service delivefy through training 
andéccreditation, developing business 
understanding and industry knowledge, 
investment in technical support, 
development "of specialist networks, and 
effective consultation processes 

Performance of 
effective and 
efficient audits 

We understand that how an audit is 
conducted is as important as the final 
result. 

A code of conduct, audit delivery tools, 
and internal policies and procedures that 
help ensure the work performed by 
engagement personnel meets applicable 
professional standards, regulatory 
requiremems, and our standards of‘ 
quality’ 

‘ 

7
' 

Commitment to’ 
continuous 
improvement 

Compfehensive and effective 
monitoring 

We regularly solicit feedback from the 
audit committees of the entities we 
audit. Our robust internal quality review 
program ensures the work of each 
partner is reviewed every three years. 
Additionally, our procedures and a 
sample of our audits of listed entities are 
reviewed by the Canadian Public 
Accountability Board (CPAB), the 
independent regulator of the 

_ 

accountancy profession i,n.Canada. The 
Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (PCAQB) in the US also conducts 
an annual i_nspection‘of.a sample of our 
audits of SEC registrants. Finally, a 
sample of other audits and reviews is 
uhdertaken a‘nn_uaIly by the various 
provincial institutes _-in Canada. We 
consider the recommendationéthat . 

come" from these reviews and 
‘implement actions to strengthén our 
pdlic,i‘eés and'p’roc‘edures, as appropriate.



The regulatory landscape is changing 
Uncertain economic forecasts and a changing regulatory environment define today's wor!d; reliable 
financial information and high quality audits have never been more essential. 

We believe that high quality audits contribute directly to market confidence and we share your objectives 
of credible and transparent financial reporting. 

Our Audit Quality Framework is particularly relevant to Audit Committees, and we see our role in being 
transparent to you as a key mechanism to support you in the execution of your responsibilities. 

Our commitment to quality 
The independence, judgment and professional skepticism of your auditors add value to your financial 
statements, and we believe it is important to be transparent about the processes we follow to 
develop a KPMG auditors’ report. We want you to have absolute confidence in us and in the quality 
of your audit. 

Our own professional standards dictate technical requirements for reaching and communicating an 
audit opinion. And we live and abide by these requirements. We invest heavily in our quality, and the 
Audit Ouaiity Framework helps ensure these investments are the right ones--that they help us 
continuously drive and maximize our quality improvements. But we feel it is also important that we 
communicate to you how we view and implement audit quality. The seven key drivers outlined here, 
combined with the commitment of each individual in KPMG, are meant to do just that. 
KPMG member firms across the world use this audit quality framework to describe, focus on and 
enhance audit quality for the benefit of the entities we audit and in support of the efficacy of our 
capital markets. 

It is our hope that sharing our vision of what audit quality means is a significant step in building 
confidence in the value of our audits. 

Audit quality is fundamental to the way we work.



www.kpmg.ca 

KPMG LLP, an Audit. Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of 
'On_tario, is the Canadian member firm of KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"). KPMG member firms 
around the world have 145,000 professionals. in 152 countries. 

The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm 
is a legally distinct and separate entity. and describes itself as such. 

© 2014 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. 
The KPMG name. logo and "cutting through complexity" are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 
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From: 
Subject: 

Sent date: 
To: 

Attachments: 

Fro.r—I.1'L.isa Bo;;.c;-fr1'Iai|t<J‘:— .Boyce@aadnc-aandc.gc.c‘2.:j
H 

vveomau O.U - IDOOX 

"Evan Shoforost" <evan.shoforost@ca.ey.com> 
FW: MN—S Audit report 201 
07/08/2016 01:56:40 PM 
"Michael CampbeH"<mIchael.campbell@ca.ey.com>, "matay@sasktel.net" 
<matay@sasktel.net> 
2 attachments - Download all attachments [10 MB 1 
SKM_C554e16070813280_1.pdf[10 MB], Lisa Boyce.vcf [ 463 B ] 

Evan Shoforost CPA, CA | 
Tax Partner, Private Business Services‘ 

Ernst & Young LLP 

1200 410-22"“ Street East, Saskatoon, Sask. S7K 5T6 
Phone: +1 306 649 8242 
EY/Comm: 1637463 | Eg§n,Shaforost@ca,§y.gQm 
ey.com/Q . 

Assistant: Naiia Zaman-I Phone: +1 308 649 8234 | 
naila.2aman@g.ey.com 

Thank you for considering the environmental impact of printing e—mans. 

' Services provided through Evan Shoforost CPA. C.A., P.C. Ltd.. 

.-.-..--...-.._.._.... --..........-.._..«........-.. .._‘....,... . . . ... . - .. . .. 

Sent: Friday, July 08, 2016 1:09 PM 
To: Richard Quintal; Evan Shoforost 
Cc: Katelin Peltier 
Subject: MN-S Audit report 201 

Good afternoon ~ I trust all is well? 

Attached you will find INACs report incorporating the consultant audit findings Dated March 2012 

After meeting with the ABLE consultant this morning it was noted that this report was shared with the recipient and copied 
to the program at the time of the audit. ' ~ 

Should you have questions please do not hesitate to ask 

ioy the day ~ there is not another like it!! 

hhnvr//hlnhmnil aaelnnl nnflwm mill 1/’)
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Lisa Boyce 

Policy & Program Officer, Politique & agent de programme 

Métis & Non status Indian Relations Directorate - Relations avec Res Métis et les lndiens Non-lnscrits 

Direction générale des relations externes get avec les Autochtones / Aboriginal and External Relations Branch
A 

Politiques et orientation stratégique / Policy and Strategic Direction 

Affaires autochtones et Développement du Nord Canada / Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada 

10, rue Wellington, Piéce 1940 D 84 Wellington Street, Room 1940 D 84 

Courriel / E—Mail : Iisa,L2oygg@aadgc-aangc.gc.Q 

Téléphone / Phone : 819-934-1739 

Happiness is not something readymade. It comes from your own actions. —Dalai Lama 

CONFIDENTIAL and/or PRIVILEGED. If received in error please notify the sender and permanently delete. CONFIDENTIEL 
et/ou PRIVILEGIE. Si ce courriel est regu par erreur, veuillez nous en aviser et en effacer toute trace. EY, 222 Bay St, PO 
Box 251, Toronto. ON M5K 1J7. www.ey.com/ca To unsubscribe from commercial electronic messages / Pour vous 
désabonner des messages électroniques commerciaux : Unsubscribe@ca.ey.com 

Any tax advice in this e-mail should be considered in the context of the tax services we are providing to you‘ Preliminary tax 
advice should not be relied upon and may be insufficient for US penalty protection. Tout conseil de fiscalité contenu dans Ie 
présent courriel doit étre pn's dans le contexte des services de fiscalité que nous vous offrons‘ Aucune décision ou position 
ne doit étre prise 3 la Iumiére de conseils de fiscalité préliminaires, lesquels pourraient ne pas permettre d'éviter des 
pénalités aux Etats-Unis. 

hfinl:-Muaiwn all can Idol nnilfllm ai I I '31’)



C. 

,ann*esm 

5?, .‘,.... 4». .. 

March 2012 

Canadfi



‘ii :’51'' 

Qutlne 

6 Background 
9 Auditobjectives 
9 Audit scope 
9 Audit findingslconclusionslrecommendations 
@ Management Action Plan



in December 2011 the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development 
Canada (AANDC) contracted the independent audit firm, Hallux Consulting , to 
conduct an audit of the Métis Nation-Saskatchewan (MN—S). 

The audit was conducted in response to a number of issues‘ ‘raised by members of 
the Provincial Métis Council (PMC) of the MN—S. - 

The results of this audit were presented to the Office of the Federal lnterlocutor, 
members of the MN—-S Executive and PMC in February 2012.
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Indian and Northern 
Affairs Canada 

Affaires indiennes 
et du Nord Canada 

Audit Qbjectves 
Objectives of the audit work were to: 

1. Examine the holiday pay that may have been paid to MN—S 
executive members and severance paid to a departing ‘member 
of the executive 

2. Examine eligibility of travel costs incurred by members of the 
Executive 

3. Examine the sale of a building previously owned by Métis 
Holdco Inc. and identify how the funds generated by the sale 
were distributed 

4. Examine monthly funds collected by Métis Holdco and where 
these funds are directed 

5. ‘Examine the funding received by MN—S from the Nuclear Waste 
Management Organization (NWMO); determine the purpose of 
this funding and the activities implemented with this funding 

6. Examine how all the materials, equipment and knowledge gained 
from the 2007 election have been transferred or disposed of. 
This would include also the voters list and the unspent funds for 
the election.



Indian and Northern 
Affairs Canada 

Affaires indiennes 
et du Nord Canada 

$c@p@ ©f Audit Wmk 
The scope of the audit included: 

Transactions back to 2007 when the MN-S last held elections and the 
current executive took office 

Executive salary and benefits from 2007-2008 to 2011-12 

Executive travel between April 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011 

Transactions asséciated with funds generated from sale of a 
commercial property in 2009 and the revenues andcosts associated 
with saie of a commercial property since 2009 

Revenues and costs associated with the Nuclear Waste Management 
Organization (MWMO) contract in 2009 

Transfer of assets from 2007 election to MN-S in 2009



Affaires indiennes Indian and Northern 
et du Nord Canada Affairs Canada~ 

Audit Féndngs 
‘E. Executive Campensatima 

° MN—S’ human resources manual does not have a section on vacation 
entitlements 

° Under Saskatchewan Labour Standards employees are entitled to three 
weeks vacation each anniversary year. This increases to four weeks 
after 10 years of service. If paid out, employee is entitled to 3/52"“ or 
4/52"” of the total wages received ‘ 

- All members of the executive received vacation pay in April 2008 based 
on 1.25 days/month for the period June 27, 2007 (date of election) to 
March 31, 2008 

° Payment was based on quoted pay rather than wages actually paid 

0 Payment to the Executive was 34% higher than required under the 
Saskatchewan Labour Standards



y:_;e,_ 1;; Affaires indiennes Indian and Northern 
V‘:/F’ et du Nord Canada Affairs Canada 

Audi Findngg 
1., Executive Cgmpensatan (confd) 

° Former Treasurer received vacation pay for 26.66 days after he 
resigned in February 2010 

I 

-— 28.75 days accumulated between April 1, 2008 and February 28, 
2010 at a rate of 1.25 days/month 

é 
-— There initially was an overpayment. It was paid back by the former 

Treasurer in late Nov 2010 
—- Former Treasurer received a contract June 25 -Sept. 24, 2010 for 

which he was paid $14K 
~ Statement of work was not well defined 
° Payments of $6,363.66 also made for the period Sept 25-Oct 

31, 2010 for which there was no contract 
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Audit Findngs 
1. Executive Campengatian (confd) 

Executive received the same benefits as the MN-S staff including: 

—- Extended medical benefits paid for by the MN-S 
-— Up to a $100 month contribution to a registered savings plan (RSP) 

was matched by the MN-S 

Additional RSP contribution of six percent of annual base pay was 
made on behalf of Executive by the MN-S in late March 2011
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Audit Cmmusans
? 

1 ., Executive Cfimpensatma (confd) 

° Payment for unused vacation in 2008 was higher than mandated by 
Saskatchewan Labour Standards 

v Payment for banked vacation assumed that the members of the 
Executive never took any vacation 

g 

0 Executive established their own benefits beyond those availabie to 
MN~S staff which is contrary to normal governance practice 
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Recommendaticn 
1. Executive Compensatima 

° 
, Provincial Métis Council (PMC) should be formally tasked with 
establishing and adjusting pay and benefits for _the Executive
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Audi Findings 
2., Emmative Travefi 
° Most cost effective means of travel is rarely used (extensive use of 

personal vehicles rather than car rentals) 

. 

9 Corporate credit cards provided to members of the executive provided 
collision insurance coverage when rental is charged to the card 

° Car rental assumed a standard vehicle rented from a non-airport 
location in Saskatoon with no discount 

° Reasons for travel were not consistently documented. 

° Names of those present were never provided for meals charged to the 
corporate credit card 
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Audit Findingg 
2. Execufiwe Trave (confd)

~ 
Additional issues identified: 

— Several travel claims did not accurately reflect the travel undertaken resulting 
in over charging of distance actually travelled 

—— Personal expenses on corporate credit card were claimed for which there 
was no evidence that the MN-S was reimbursed 

— Double claims (gas purchases on credit card at the same time an allowance 
for mileage was received; meals on credit card at the same time an ‘ 

allowance for meals was received; advances for taxis and taxis expenditures 
on credit card) 

—- MN-S indicated some of double claims were reimbursed but did not provide 
the requested documentation to support this 

—— MN-S indicated that advances for taxis were reconciled. Supporting 
documentation that would demonstrate this was not provided 

— No response was provided by the MN-S when asked what steps are taken to 
recover the cost of meals when the credit card holder is also receiving per 
diems in the same period



gas: Affaires indiennes 
et du Nordlcanada 

Indian and Northern 
Affairs Canada 

Audi Findg$ 
2., Exewive Wave (confd) 

Additional issues identified: 
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Charges on credit card (e.g. hotels) but no corresponding travel claim 
0 In each case, an Executive member said travel was required in 

response to a telephone request 
Business undertaken on the same trip for both the MN-S and an affiliate 

- No evidence that there was an appropriate ailocation of costs between 
the two organizations and that allowances were not double claimed 

MN-S definition of incidental costs as provided Feb 1, 2012 appeared to 
exclude some items included in federal government definition 

° Personal telephone calls from hotel room 
° Headsets purchased on an airplane ‘

. 

$400 payment to each member of the Executive were made in July 2011 for 
consultations. Explanation provided during the audit was that it was to cover 
the cost of a hotel room for an Elder from Alberta attending “Back to Batoche” 
event. No documentation was provided to support this
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Audit Fndings 
2 Executve Travefl (confd) 

0 $71 K in 2011-12 expenses was inappropriately charged to a 
consultations accrual account 

— Accrual should have reflected goods and services received up to 
March 31, 2011 

f 

— Many of the problematic expenses identified in this audit were 
coded to this account 

6’ OF 1 has agreed to take follow-up action to determine if $71K in 2011-12 
expenditures coded to an accrual account was included in 2010-11 
claimed expenditures and if so, initiate recovery.
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Cmmugwng 
2. Emmfiive Travefi 
6 Executive travel claims were problematic: 

~— The means of travel was based on convenience ratherxthan what 
was cost effective 

— There was a lack of matching of credit cards expenditures with 
travel claims making it easy to double claim 

— The levei of documentation provided to support reasons for travel 
was less than what staff need to submit 

—- There were overpayments arising from claimed distance being 
more than what was actually travelled 

—— There were overpayments arising from the rental of a vehicle and 
ciaiming per kilometre reimbursement rather than reimbursement of 
costs incurred 

—— There was the potential for double claiming with travelling for both 
the MN—S and an affiliate at the same time
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Recommendationg 
2. Execufiive Travei 

° All travel claims should show all costs associated with the travel 
— All costs for which an invoice was paid directly (e.g., hotel room 

or car rental)
‘ 

—— Ail costs paid for on the corporate credit card (e.g., air fare, car 
3 rentals, hotels, meals) 

— All allowances and per diems 

° ‘ Same level of detail should be required for credit card expenditures as 
. would be required on a travei claim ~ 

0 Reimbursement should be obtained for all over payments on travel 
claims, personal costs and expenses on corporate credit cards for 
which per diems/allowances were paid
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Recammendaians 
Em Emmfive mvei (confd) 

6 A procedure should be in place to altocate travel costs between the 
MN-S and its Affiliates‘ when trave! is undertaken at the same time on 
behalf of more than one organization 

° MN-S Executive should consider proactive public disclosure of their 
credit card and travel expenses
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Audfit Findmgg 
3.. Funds Associated with $389 of Cammercia Property 

° Proceeds of sale ($1,190,829) of commercial property at 219 Robin 
Crescent, Saskatoon were used by the Provincial Métis Holdco Inc. in 
2009 to pay off three mortgages to MN—S affiliates: 
— Clarence Campeau Development Fund ($275,515) 
- Provincial Métis Housing Corporation ($112,742) 

3 

. 

—— Sasklvlétis Economic Development Corp ($244,101) 

° Remaining proceeds from sale were left in the trust account of the 
lawyer who handled the transaction 

0 Funds were withdrawn on three occasions from the sale for use as a 
deposit for the potential purchase of a building. The funds have since 
been returned to the trust account
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Audi Fndngg 
3. Funds Associated with Sale of Commerciafi Property (confd)

~ 
6 Funds were withdrawn to meet needs of Métis Holdco Inc. to pay rent at 

‘ 406 Jessop, Saskatoon. These funds (total $50K) have not been repaid 
° Funds were withdrawn to meet the MN-S cash flow requirements 

— $100K loan May 2010 which was paid back by October 2010 
—- $150K loan December 2010 to meet the “Back fo Batoche” 

Committee’s shortfall. These funds were paid back by October 
201 1 
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e The balance as of December 31, 2011 was $510,575.76 (interest for 
g 

December 2011 had yet to be credited) 
P

E

E 

- The 2009.sa|e of the property at 219 Robin Crescent enabled 
recognition of appreciated value. From this sale, Métis Holdco Inc. 
moved from an accumulated deficit to an accumulated surplus. Funds 
from the saie can be traced. Approximately $511K of proceeds were in 

3 
a trust account as of Dec. 31, 2011.
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Audit Fndings 
4. fise Qf Fundg Cmected in Rem 

~ ~ 

= Provincia| Métis Ho|dco’s primary assets as of December 31, 2011 
were: the funds in the trust account from the sale of a commercial 
property; its lease of a commercial property to the MN—S and some of its 
affiliates and; the net value of the leasehold improvements at its 
commercial property 

0 Monthly rent collected by Métis Holdco Inc. from its subtenants 
included: 
—— Métis Addiction Council of Saskatchewan Inc. (MACS!) 
— Métis Nation — Saskatchewan Secretariat 
-- Provincial Métis Housing Corporation (PMHC) 
—— Sasklviétis Economic Development Corp (SMEDCO)
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Audi Endings 
4. age ©§ Hmdg Ccfiiemefi fin Rent

~ 

° Funds from reht were used to pay: 

Rent on the building and Métis Holdco Inc.’s share of the joint 
operating costs to the landlord 

— Loan from SMEDCO that was used to cover the costs of the‘ 
leasehold improvements (10% interest rate) 

— Métis Holdco Inc. has essentially broken even on the rental of the 
building since it moved subtenants into the commercial property at 
406 Jessop in the fall of 2009 

-— $27,079 was written off in rent from the MN-S in 2010 because of 
the MN-S’ fiscal problems
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Canclugians 
4 U39 Qf Funds Cmlected in Rent 
6 Other than write~offs of MN—S rent owing, funds from rental income on 

the commercial property at 406 Jessop have been spent as expected
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Audi Féndmggz 
5.. Canfiract wéfih the Nucear Waste 
anagemem Qrganizatm QNWMQ)~ 

° NWMO awarded MN—S a contract for $253K in 2009 to design and 
conduct five regional dialogues with members of the MN—S. Input was 
to be provided to the NWMO on the proposed process for selecting a 
site for Adaptive Phased Management 

° MN—S was provided with an accountable advance. Supporting receipts 
were to be submitted for all ciaimed costs and MN—S had to submit a 
copy of their general ledger and supporting documentation for every 
cost claimed
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Cmmlusians 
5:. C©ntract with the Nuciear Waste 
Managemem Grganfizatcn 

; 

° Claimed expenses on NWMO contract were vetted and deemed 
acceptable by NWMO 
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Audi: Fnéngsz 
6.. Materiais, Equfipment and Funds from 2007 Electiara 

° Materials (including voters’ list and unspent funds) were turned over to 
MN-S June 26, 2009 

— $25,774.22 deposited in the MN-S general bank account and 
recorded as “Election -— Other Income”. Legal fees were deducted 
before remaining funds were turned over to _the MN-S 

-— MN-S position prior to audit was that funds were in trust with 
Province of Saskatchewan 

~ Computer equipment was turned over to the MN~S later by the Province 
and, at the time of the audit, stored in an unheated storage locker in 
Saskatoon that is controlied by the MN-S. The Chief Electoral Officer 
(CEO) appointed by the MN-S is planning to use this equipment for the 
2012 election. ' 

° MN-S did not put aside $75/K/yr that 2007 CEO recommended for 2012 
election
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Canausmi 
6. Materiaflg, Equipment and Funds from 2007 Electian 

0 MN-S will have less funds availabie than planned to cover the cost of 
the 2012 election 

—- $26K thought to be in trust with Province was deposited in MN-S 
, 

bank account in June 2009 ~ 

i 
— Computer equipment does not have an indefinite lifespan. 

Equipment in storage from 2007 election may not meet 
; requirements for 2012 election 
‘ — MN-S has not put aside $75K/year as recommended by the 2007 
*" Chief Electoral Officer
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Management Respanse 

~~ 1. Provincial Métis _~; The current administration will ' Late spring 2012 
Council (PMC should * undertake to make the following 

2 be formauy tasked $3 recommendation fo the fifture PMC, 
with establishing directly after the election: 
and adjusting pay "The Provincial Métis Council, as it 
and behefits forthe‘ formsvthe Board of the Métis Nation- 
Executive. 

7 

_’ Saskatchewan Secretariat, wilt , 

~ undertake annual review of Executive 
,_ A 

‘ wages, benefits and adjustments, and 
§ 

’ 

V; make changes as necessary, within the 
z 

. 

Iimitahtions of the current contributionv 
» agreement and in line with the MNS 
_ 

constitution.” 
, 

1 The PMC can thén maké the 
; recommendation to "the MNLA.
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Management Respansa 

~~ 
esponse/Actjo'n= ~

i

n ~~ .41’ .., "-1~ 3. Svameleveldf ‘>TP.:e.MNS hasimblementedt . 

V 

,FeE;ruary:2OAi2 
detaflshould be ‘_. andis practicinga new Crgdit ‘ 

‘- 

required for credit ‘ Card Policy which includes
A 

f’ card expefiditures 
‘ 

Qetaiied reconciliations. The ;}b 

as wgdld be 
I 

I 

Creldit-Card policy was 
’ 

‘ ‘h 

required on _a travel 
’ implemented early thisyear. 

claim. 
_ 

_ 
, The recommendation to the 
fnewi PMC7wi|i be to make’ 

; 
2 sure no corporate cards are 

V. issued without a policyin ,- 

._ * 

. 

b 
place that everyone agrees to 
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Management Regponse fl
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.9» Management Response 

~~ 
5.. Aprocedure, ;Thecurr._ent exe.cutE.ve‘s.wi«N;:-» _ .;MN-S4, ‘°~FaH2012 ~ 

should be in DI-ace)’ «um-dertaketo makefthis‘ " 
V

' 

"to a|k)cate'trav‘”el ’ recommendation to the 
‘

A 

7co£'§t.s‘betweent’he':' »affilfatesandthe n§‘w_ 
‘

_ 

its :__.;,Admi«n;i:stration 

Affiliates when ' This recommendation can then ‘

‘ 

travelis - 

- {be-taken to the MNLA'to be 
4un;derta.kenat'the add'edto"go'\’7e:‘rning;. 7 
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